
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie
Council Correspondence

 
November 24, 2023

Pages

1. Algoma Public Healh 3 - 117

November 22, 2023 Meeting Package

September 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes

2. Automated Speed Enforcement System 118 - 118

Municipality of Wawa•

3. Water Treatment Training 119 - 120

Municipality of Wawa•

4. Digital Publication 121 - 122

Municipality of Wawa•

5. Fire Tax Credit 123 - 125

Municipality of Wawa•

Township of Bonfield •

6. Gender-Based and Intimate Partner Violence 126 - 145

Dufferin County •

Town of Orangeville•

Township of North Dundas•

7. Amendment to the Legislation Act, 2006 146 - 150



City of Owen Sound•

Township of McKellar•

Township of Ryerson•

8. Long-Term Care Act 151 - 156

Municipality of Temagami•

Township of Bonfield•

Elgin County •

9. Highway Traffic Act – Excessive Noise 157 - 157

Municipality of Shuniah•

10. School Bus Stop Arm Cameras 158 - 158

Township of Bonfield•

11. Childcare Availability 159 - 159

Township of Bonfield•

12. Cigarette Producer Responsibility 160 - 160

Township of Bonfield•

13. Chronic Pain Treatment 161 - 161

Municipality of Calvin•

Page 2 of 161



November 22, 2023

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

Algoma Community Room / Videoconference

www.algomapublichealth.com

Page 3 of 161



1. Call to Order

2. Adoption of Agenda

3. Adoption of Minutes

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive
Officer Report

i. APH Unaudited Financial Statements for the
period ending September 30, 2023

19

b. Finance and Audit

i. Report of MOH CEO - Nov 2023 12

ii. 2024 Capital Operating Budget Report 27

6. Reports to Board

a. Letter to Federal Ministers Freeland, Sudds,
MacAulay, and Duclos from Sudbury District Public
Health regarding Support for a Funded Healthy
School Food Program in Budget 2024 dated October
27, 2023.

60

8. Correspondence

9. Items for Information

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. November 22, 2023, Board of Health Meeting
Agenda

4

a. October 25, 2023, Board of Health Meeting Minutes 7

4. Delegation/Presentations

5. Business Arising

c. Governance

7. New Business

b. Letter to Premier Ford and Provincial Ministers
Jones and Tibollo from Sudbury & Districts Public
Health regarding Public Health Strengthening and
Chronic Disease Prevention dated October 27, 2023.

64

Meeting Book - November 22, 2023, Board of Health Meeting

Table of Contents

Page 2 of 116

Page 4 of 161



a. alPHa Information Break - November 2023 66

b. AOHT (Algoma Ontario Health Team) - Board of
Director Information Session and Discussion

84

c. alPHa - Strenthening Public Health - Planning and
Next Steps

113

14. Announcements

d. alPHa Summary - Fall Economic Statement 115

10. Addendum

11. In-Camera

12. Open Meeting

13. Resolutions Resulting From In-Camera

a. Next Meeting Dates

15. Adjournment

Page 3 of 116

Page 5 of 161



BOARD MEMBERS APH MEMBERS
Sally Hagman - Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - Medical Officer of Health & CEO
Luc Morrissette - 1st Vice-Chair
Deborah Graystone - 2nd Vice-Chair

Rick Webb - Director of Corporate Services
Donald McConnell
Loretta O'Neill
Matthew Shoemaker Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Sonia Tassone Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services
Suzanne Trivers Liliana Bressan - Manager of Effective Public Health Practice
Jody Wildman Tania Caputo - Board Secretary

Trina Mount - Executive Assistant

1.0 Meeting Called to Order S. Hagman
a. 
b.
c. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda S. Hagman
Moved:

3.0 Delegations / Presentations

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting S. Hagman

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes S. Hagman

6.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports J. Loo
i. 

Moved:

MOH Report - November 22, 2023
• Program Highlights –  Exploring Barriers and Facilitators to Healthy Eating and Active Living   
   (HEAL) Behaviours in Algoma: The Community Partner Interview Project

RESOLUTION

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for November 22, 2023 be accepted as presented.

• Public Health Champion Awards

Declaration of Conflict of Interest
Roll Call

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health meeting agenda dated November 22, 2023 be approved as presented. 

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health meeting minutes dated October 25, 2023, be approved as presented. 

Julila Hemphill

Land Acknowledgment

Kristy Harper - Director of Health Promotion & Chief Nursing 
Officer

Dr. John Tuinema - Associate Medical Officer of Health & 
Director of Health Protection

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

November 22, 2023 at 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video/Teleconference 

Page 4 of 116

Page 6 of 161



6.0 a. Finance and Audit

i. L. Morrissette

Moved:

ii. 2024 Recommended Capital and Operating Budget Report L. Morrissette

Moved:

7.0 New Business/General Business S. Hagman

8.0 Correspondence S. Hagman
a. 

b.

9.0 S. Hagman

a. alPHa Information Break - November 2023

b. AOHT (Algoma Ontario Health Team) - Board of Director Information Session and Discussion 

c.

d. alPHa Summary - Fall Economic Statement

10.0 S. Hagman

11.0 S. Hagman

Moved:

12.0 S. Hagman
Resolutions resulting from the in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: S. Hagman

Board of Health
Wednesday, January 24, 2024 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video Conference

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Wednesday, February 14, 2024 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video Conference

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, 
adoption of in-camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Open Meeting

In-Camera

Items for Information 

Addendum

alPHa - Strenthening Public Health - Planning and Next Steps

Letter to Federal Ministers Freeland, Sudds, MacAulay, and Duclos from Sudbury District Public Health 
regarding Support for a Funded Healthy School Food Program in Budget 2024 dated October 27, 2023.

Letter to Premier Ford and Provincial Ministers Jones and Tibollo from Sudbury & Districts Public Health 
regarding Public Health Strengthening and Chronic Disease Prevention dated October 27, 2023.

Unaudited Financial Statements ending September 30, 2023

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending September 30, 
2023, as presented.

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and accepts the recommendation of the Finance and Audit 
Committee to approve the 2024 Public Health Capital and Operating Budget Report.

Page 5 of 116

Page 7 of 161



14.0 Evaluation S. Hagman

a. Evaluation

15.0 Adjournment S. Hagman

Moved:

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

RESOLUTION

Page 6 of 116

Page 8 of 161



 
 

  

 

Prepared by:   
Dr. Jennifer Loo and the  
Leadership Team 
 
Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health  

 

Report of the  

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

November 22, 2023 
 

 

Page 12 of 116

Page 9 of 161



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
November 22, 2023 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

APH At-a-Glance and Our Partnerships Page 2 

Program Highlight –  The Community Partner Interview 
Project 

Pages 3-7 

Page 13 of 116

Page 10 of 161



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
November 22, 2023 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 
 

 
 
The work of APH teams this November continues to highlight the critical role of local public health 
in protecting our communities and advancing health equity through community engagement. 
 
As detailed in this month's report to the BOH, the Community Partner Interview (CPI) project saw 
APH engage with over 30 local partners to identify how the pandemic impacted healthy eating and 
active living (HEAL) behaviours.  Locally-driven data collection identified Algoma priority 
populations for interventions, as well as key facilitators and barriers in Algoma for improving HEAL 
behaviours.  APH shared these findings with partners alongside targeted, actionable steps 
organizations could take to advance healthy eating and active living.  This work strengthens local 
coalitions in advancing social determinants of health, such as transportation, income, and food 
insecurity, and exemplifies APH's role as a knowledge broker and enabler of community action in 
the realm of health promotion. 
 
With regards to the province's intended changes to the public health sector, late in October, the 
Ministry of Health released an overview of its objectives related to voluntary mergers.  These 
objectives involve increased capacity in terms of critical mass and organizational performance, 
human resources, and system alignment and partnerships.  Of note, the Ministry intends to build 
critical mass through local public health agencies that have a minimum population base of 
approximately 500,000 while recognizing that "in limited circumstances, mergers of geographically 
large, remote and sparsely populated LPHAs may result in geographic challenges that outweigh the 
benefits of achieving a minimum population base of 500,000."  To further understand how these 
objectives and criteria are intended to apply in our region, I, along with Dr. John Tuinema and Board 
of Health Chair Sally Hagman, recently met with the Chief Medical Officer of Health and senior 
Ministry officials in Sudbury, alongside our northeast counterparts.  Further details on this topic are 
provided in a separate briefing note in an addendum to this month's BOH package, as well as 
recommendations to the BOH on next steps. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 14 of 116

Page 11 of 161



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
November 22, 2023 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

 
 
Topic: Exploring Barriers and Facilitators to Healthy Eating and Active Living (HEAL) Behaviours in Algoma: The 
Community Partner Interview Project 
 
From: Hilary Cutler, Manager, School Health & Community Wellness 
 
Chronic Disease Prevention and Well-Being Program Standard Requirements1 addressed in this report: 
• The board of health shall develop and implement a program of public health interventions using a 

comprehensive health promotion approach that addresses chronic disease risk and protective factors to 
reduce the burden of illness from chronic diseases in the health unit population. The program of public health 
interventions shall be informed by consideration of the following topics based on an assessment of local 
needs: built environment, healthy eating behaviours, and physical activity and sedentary behaviour. 
 

2021-2025 Strategic Priorities addressed in this report 
[X] Advance the priority public health needs of Algoma’s diverse communities.  
[X] Improve the impact and effectiveness of Algoma Public Health programs.  
[X] Grow and celebrate an organizational culture of learning, innovation, and continuous improvement.  
 
Key Messages  
• Public health measures implemented during the COVID-19 pandemic impacted healthy eating and active living 

(HEAL) behaviours across Ontario.2  
• The community partner interview (CPI) project explored barriers and facilitators to engaging in HEAL 

behaviours across the Algoma region. The top three barrier themes were lack of access to transportation, 
inadequate income, and food insecurity, and the top three facilitator themes were organizational resources, 
social and community resources, and built environment. 

• Themes were shared back with community partners who participated in the interviews, as a brief report and 
infographic. 

• The CPI project allowed HEAL team members to reconnect with community partners and begin to rebuild 
positive working relationships for future health promotion work.  

• The results of the CPI project will inform strategic community advocacy, as well as Algoma Public Health 
program planning.  

 
The Community Partner Interview Project: An Overview  
 
Project Overview 
Public health measures implemented during the COVID-19 pandemic impacted the healthy eating and active living 
(HEAL) behaviours of Ontarians.2 Throughout 2022-2023, public health units began to shift their focus from 
pandemic-response back to health promotion planning. To inform planning, a situational assessment was 
conducted to explore how COVID-19 impacted HEAL behaviours across Algoma and identify the priority 
populations for interventions, along with barriers and facilitators to improving HEAL behaviours. 
 
Materials and Methods 
From November 2022-March 2023, members of the internal HEAL working group met with 33 community 
partners across Algoma, including municipal representatives, Indigenous health partners, community health 
centres, charitable food programs, etc. Semi-structured interviews were conducted in-person, over the phone, or 
virtually through Microsoft Teams©. The interview questions were as follows: 
 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHT – The Community Partner Interview Project 

Page 15 of 116

Page 12 of 161



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
November 22, 2023 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 

1. Tell me about you/your organization (Prompts: What is the goal/mission? What programs/services are 
offered? Who is the target population?) 

2. In your opinion, how do you think COVID-19 has impacted HEAL behaviours? (Prompt: Is the situation 
similar to before COVID-19? Better? Worse?) 

3. In your opinion, who do you believe are the priority groups that would benefit most from improving HEAL 
behaviours? 

4. Why do you believe these groups would benefit the most? 
5. What are barriers to improving HEAL behaviours in these priority groups? (Prompt: Could include the 

social determinants of health or gaps in programs/services) 
6. What are facilitators (or strengths) that could help improve HEAL behaviours in these priority groups? 

(Prompts: Could include characteristics/values of the group or programs/services that have worked 
before) 

7. Is there any other information you would like to share? 
 

After the interviews were complete, a qualitative thematic analysis was completed by the Research and Policy 
Advisor and the Community Wellness Dietitian. Codes were categorized separately into preliminary themes using 
an adapted Socioecological Model3,4 and then collaboratively refined into final themes. The HEAL workgroup 
discussed appropriate knowledge translation techniques for our target audience of community partners and 
decision-makers. The final knowledge translation products included an infographic and plain-language report, 
which were shared back to the community partners that had participated in the interviews.   
 
Results from CPIs 
The community partner interviews uncovered priority populations for public health interventions to support HEAL 
behaviours, including:  
 

• people living with low income,  
• seniors/intergenerational groups, 
• parents/working age adults,  
• youth/teens,  
• people living with disability/chronic disease,  
• international students, and  
• First Nations/Indigenous populations 

 
The thematic analysis identified 11 themes for improving HEAL behaviours including (1) lack of access to 
transportation, (2) inadequate income, (3) food insecurity, (4) organizational limitations, (5) accessibility barriers, 
(6) community engagement, (7) lack of HEAL literacy, (8) poor mental health, (9) lack of social and community 
resources, (10) social isolation, and (11) time poverty (see thematic map in Figure 1).  

Three key facilitator themes for improving HEAL behaviours were identified, including (1) organizational 
resources, (2) social and community resources, and (3) built environment (see Figure 2).  

Page 16 of 116

Page 13 of 161



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
November 22, 2023 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 

 
Figure 1. Barriers to improving HEAL behaviours. The red number indicates the number of times this theme was 
identified. Font size positively correlates with frequency of the theme. Codes feed into each theme and form an 
interconnected web. 

 

 
Figure 2. Facilitators to improving HEAL behaviours. The red number indicates the number of times this theme 
was identified. Font size positively correlates with frequency of the theme. Codes feed into each theme and form 
an interconnected web.  
 
 
Next Steps: 2024 and Beyond  
The CPI project will inform health promotion work within the Community Wellness team into 2024. The 
knowledge translation products provided to community partners included actionable steps they could take to 
help improve HEAL behaviours by targeting the barriers identified. Through the CPI project, the HEAL working 
group was able to pave the way for further collaboration with community partners, including supporting ongoing 
advocacy efforts, consulting on workplace initiatives related to HEAL behaviours, supporting organizational 
capacity building, and providing health data and evidence to support grant applications or policy development.   
 
 
 

Page 17 of 116

Page 14 of 161



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
November 22, 2023 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 

 
 
References  
1.  Ontario Ministry of Health. Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services and 

Accountability. 2021. Available from: Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services 
and Accountability (gov.on.ca) 

2. Public Health Ontario. Negative Impacts of Community-Based Public Health Measures During a Pandemic (e.g. 
COVID-19) on Children and Families. 2020. Available from: Negative Impacts of Community-Based Public 
Health Measures During a Pandemic (e.g., COVID-19) on Children and Families (publichealthontario.ca) 

3. Environmental interventions to reduce the consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages and their effects on 
health (Protocol) - Scientific Figure on ResearchGate. Available from: 
https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Socio-ecological-model-of-food-and-beverage-intake-Adapted-from-
CDC-2015_fig3_305700513  

4. Bornstein, Daniel & Davis, William. (2014). The Transportation Profession's Role in Improving Public Health. 
Institute of Transportation Engineers Journal. 84. 19-24. Available from: e Social-Ecological Model Adapted for 
Physical Activity 24  | Download Scientific Diagram (researchgate.net) 

Page 18 of 116

Page 15 of 161

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/cong/2020/06/covid-19-negative-impacts-public-health-pandemic-families.PDF?rev=f4174b744ae645f78fdcf31422934875&sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/cong/2020/06/covid-19-negative-impacts-public-health-pandemic-families.PDF?rev=f4174b744ae645f78fdcf31422934875&sc_lang=en
https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Socio-ecological-model-of-food-and-beverage-intake-Adapted-from-CDC-2015_fig3_305700513
https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Socio-ecological-model-of-food-and-beverage-intake-Adapted-from-CDC-2015_fig3_305700513
https://www.researchgate.net/figure/e-Social-Ecological-Model-Adapted-for-Physical-Activity-24_fig1_264347123
https://www.researchgate.net/figure/e-Social-Ecological-Model-Adapted-for-Physical-Activity-24_fig1_264347123


Algoma Public Health
(Unaudited) Financial Statements

Index Page
  Statement of Operations 1
  Statement of Revenues - Public Health 2
  Statement of Expenses - Public Health 3

  Notes to the Financial Statements 4-6

  Statement of Financial Position 7

September 30, 2023

Page 19 of 116

Page 16 of 161



Algoma Public Health
Statement of Operations 
September 2023
(Unaudited)

Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt. YTD Budget
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023

Public Health Programs (Calendar)
Revenue
Municipal Levy - Public Health 3,141,913$         3,141,912$       1$                   4,189,216$     0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Cost Shared Funding 6,640,411 6,645,900 (5,489)             8,861,200 0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 1,693,855 1,714,012 (20,157)           3,363,439 -1% 99%
Provincial Grants - Mitigation Funding 778,354 778,350 4                     1,037,800 0% 100%
Fees, other grants and recovery of expenditures 404,948 370,538 34,410            452,384 9% 109%
Total Public Health Revenue 12,659,481$       12,650,712$     8,768$            17,904,039$   0% 100%

Expenditures
Public Health Cost Shared 11,948,477$       11,766,517$     (181,960)$      15,618,691$   2% 102%
Public Health 100% Prov. Funded Programs 1,873,581 1,714,012 (159,569)        2,285,349 9% 109%
Total Public Health Programs Expenditures 13,822,058$       13,480,529$     (341,529)$      17,904,040$   3% 103%

Total Rev. over Exp. Public Health (1,162,578)$        (829,817)$         (332,761)$      0$                   

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 534,011$            534,006            5                     1,068,011       0% 100%
Expenditures 526,147              535,259            9,112              1,068,011       -2% 98%
Excess of Rev. over Exp. 7,864                  (1,253)               9,118              (0)                    

Public Health Programs (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 266,781$            312,600 (45,819)           389,100          -15% 85%
Expenditures 432,429              207,900            (224,529)        389,100          108% 208%
Excess of Rev. over Fiscal Funded (165,648)             104,700            (270,348)        -                  

Fiscal Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health 131,078$            131,077$          2$                   262,153$        0% 100%
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 114,447 114,447 -                  114,447 0% 100%
Total Community Health Revenue 245,525$            245,524$          2$                   376,600$        0% 100%

Expenditures
Brighter Futures for Children 46,402 57,224 10,822            114,447 -19% 81%
Nurse Practitioner 81,540 81,077 (464)                162,153 1% 101%
Stay on Your Feet 48,288 50,000 1,712              100,000 -3% 97%
Total Fiscal Community Health Programs 176,230$            188,300$          12,070$          376,600$        -6% 94%

Total Rev. over Exp. Fiscal Community Health 69,295$              57,223$            12,071$          (0)$                  

Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months
 

Page 20 of 116

Page 17 of 161



Algoma Public Health
Revenue Statement
For Nine Months Ending September 30, 2023 Comparison Prior Year:
(Unaudited) Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Bgt. to Act. Budget Act. to Bgt. Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022

Levies Sault Ste Marie 2,185,241 2,185,241 0 2,913,655 0% 75% 2,213,793 2,213,793 0
Levies District 956,672 956,671 1 1,275,561 0% 75% 928,119 928,119 0
Total Levies 3,141,913 3,141,912 1 4,189,216 0% 75% 3,141,912 3,141,912 0

MOH Public Health Funding 6,640,411 6,645,900 (5,489) 8,861,200 0% 75% 6,574,629 6,574,625 4
Total Public Health Cost Shared Funding 6,640,411 6,645,900 (5,489) 8,861,200 0% 75% 6,574,629 6,574,625 4

MOH Funding - MOH / AMOH Top Up 136,890 141,975 (5,085) 189,300 -4% 72% 136,265 141,975 (5,710)
MOH Funding Northern Ontario Fruits & Veg. 88,054 88,050 4 117,400 0% 75% 88,054 88,050 4
MOH Funding Unorganized 397,800 397,800 0 530,400 0% 75% 397,800 397,800 0
MOH Senior Dental 1,004,569 1,012,687 (8,118) 1,350,250 -1% 74% 800,923 824,258 (23,335)
MOH Funding Indigenous Communities 73,496 73,500 (4) 98,000 0% 75% 73,496 73,500 (4)
One Time Funding (Pandemic Pay) 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% 0
OTF COVID-19 Extraordinary Costs (6,954) 0 (6,954) 1,078,089 #DIV/0! -1% 1,650,846 1,657,800 (6,954)
Total Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 1,693,855 1,714,012 (20,157) 3,363,439 -1% 50% 3,147,384 3,183,383 (35,999)

Total Public Health Mitigation Funding 778,354 778,350 4 1,037,800 0% 75% 765,379 778,347 (12,968)

Recoveries from Programs 9,009 27,500 (18,491) 10,000 -67% 90% (26,880) 24,950 (51,830)
Program Fees 30,072 44,700 (14,628) 79,600 -33% 38% 27,513 38,721 (11,208)
Land Control Fees 166,975 195,000 (28,025) 225,000 -14% 74% 208,345 155,000 53,345
Program Fees Immunization 51,691 37,500 14,191 50,000 38% 103% 15,997 37,494 (21,497)
HPV Vaccine Program 9,996 7,125 2,871 9,500 40% 105% 0 0 0
Influenza Program 730 17,625 (16,895) 23,500 -96% 3% 0 0 0
Meningococcal C Program 1,479 5,250 (3,771) 7,000 -72% 21% 0 0 0
Interest Revenue 134,996 24,588 110,408 32,784 449% 412% 39,964 15,003 24,961
Other Revenues 0 11,250 (11,250) 15,000 -100% 0% 15,000 5,250 9,750
Total Fees and Recoveries 404,948 370,538 34,410 452,384 9% 90% 279,939 276,418 3,521

Total Public Health Revenue Annual 12,659,481 12,650,712 8,769 17,904,039 0% 71% 13,909,243 13,954,685 (45,442)

Public Health Fiscal April 2023 - March 2024
Infection Prevention and Control Hub 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0%
School Nurses Initiative 175,000 175,000 0 175,000 0% 100%
Needle Syringe Program 10,150 10,150 0 20,300 0% 50%
New Purpose-Built Vaccine Fridge 5,546 5,550 (4) 11,100 0% 50%
PHI Practicum Program 15,000 15,000 0 30,000 0% 50%
Security System Upgrades 0 45,800 (45,800) 91,600 -100% 0%
Upgrade Network Switches 61,085 61,100 (15) 61,100 0% 100%

Total Provincial Grants Fiscal 266,781 312,600 (45,819) 389,100 -17% 69% 0 0 0

Variance  2022

Page 21 of 116

Page 18 of 161



Algoma Public Health
Expense Statement- Public Health
For Nine Months Ending September 30, 2023
(Unaudited)

Comparison Prior Year:
Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt.  Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022

.
Salaries & Wages 7,932,210 8,124,797 192,587 10,833,060 -2% 73% 7,704,951$        8,410,869$       705,918$          
Benefits 2,080,084 1,906,035 (174,049) 2,541,380 9% 82% 1,851,847 1,965,181 113,334
Travel 138,599 119,100 (19,499) 158,800 16% 87% 94,526 141,529 47,003
Program 1,227,273 927,872 (299,401) 1,237,163 32% 99% 810,279 979,352 169,073
Office 44,825 61,800 16,975 82,400 -27% 54% 41,105 50,550 9,445
Computer Services 675,602 671,919 (3,683) 895,892 1% 75% 635,533 639,310 3,777
Telecommunications 219,961 198,749 (21,212) 265,000 11% 83% 252,252 245,646 (6,606)
Program Promotion 29,101 33,750 4,649 45,000 -14% 65% 31,219 63,699 32,480
Professional Development 39,716 60,318 20,602 80,424 -34% 49% 25,271 64,606 39,335
Facilities Expenses 741,359 693,000 (48,359) 924,000 7% 80% 957,792 829,794 (127,998)
Fees & Insurance  350,263 340,125 (10,138) 383,500 3% 91% 318,626 296,225 (22,401)
Debt Management 343,066 343,066 0 457,421 0% 75% 343,066 343,066 0
Recoveries 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% (6,750) (20,250) (13,500)

13,822,059$     13,480,531$   ( 341,528 )$        17,904,040$   3% 77% 13,059,717$    14,009,577$   949,860$        

Variance  2022

Page 22 of 116

Page 19 of 161



Notes to Financial Statements – September 2023 
 
Reporting Period 
 
The September 2023 financial reports include nine months of financial results for Public Health. All other 
non-funded public health programs are reporting six months of results from the operating year ending 
March 31, 2024.  
 
Statement of Operations (see page 1) 
 
Summary – Public Health and Non Public Health Programs 
 
In August 2023, APH received the 2023 Amending Agreement from the province identifying the 
approved funding allocations for APH’s cost-shared and 100% funded programming. The annual budgets 
for public health programs have been updated to reflect these allocations. The following 
allocations/changes from the previous year are of significant note: 
 

• A 1% or $88,000 increase to base funding for cost-shared mandatory programs (pro-rated for 
the months of April through December) 

• A $129,800 annualized increase in base funding for the Ontario Senior Dental Care Program 
(pro-rated for the months of April through December).  

• One time fiscal funding totaling $328,000 for special initiatives (including COVID school focused 
nurses which were funded from April through June of 2023) 

 
As of September 30, 2023, Public Health calendar programs are reporting a $333K negative variance – 
which is driven by a $342K negative variance in expenditures.   
 
Public Health Revenue (see page 2)  
 
Our Public Health calendar revenues are within 1% of budget for 2023.  
 
Although the province has confirmed that one-time extraordinary cost reimbursement for the COVID 19 
programs will continue through 2023 (with approval and on-going funding to be based off of our Annual 
Service Plan and quarterly submissions to the province), no allocations have been provided to date. Our 
Annual Service Plan was submitted to the Ministry on April 3, 2023 and our Q3 Standards Activity report 
was submitted to the Ministry on October 31, 2023 forecasting the need for $621K in COVID 19 one-
time funds for the 2023 calendar year.  
 
For the fiscal year ending March 2024, funding has been approved totaling $389K which includes 
continuation of the COVID School Focused Nurse initiative (which expired in June 2023) and $61K of one 
time funding related to upgrading of essential IT network switches has been carried over from fiscal 
2022-23 as approved by the Ministry in March 2023. Other initiatives for which one time fiscal funding 
has been provided for include the needle syringe program, new purpose-built vaccine fridge, PHI 
practicum and capital security system upgrades.  
 
Although it has been confirmed that temporary IPAC Hub funding will continue into the 2023-24 fiscal 
year, APH has not yet received confirmed funding allocations. APH has shared with the Ministry, our 
input towards a 2023-24 budget for this program and we expect to receive feedback shortly.  

Page 23 of 116

Page 20 of 161



Notes Continued… 

 

 
No funding has been approved to date for COVID Recovery initiatives ($650K was requested in 2022).  
 
 
Public Health Expenses (see page 3) 
 
Salaries & Benefits 
There is a $19K negative variance associated with salaries and benefits. This is driven by the increased 
cost of non-statutory benefits caused by significantly increased usage year over year.  
 
Travel 
There is a $19K negative variance associated with travel expenses. This is a result of management and 
front line staff increasing travel related to district recovery work and also increased travel related to 
professional development opportunities.  
 
Programs 
There is a $299K negative variance associated with programs. This is driven by ongoing COVID recovery 
initiatives (leadership and workforce development programs), physician coverage as well as increasing 
program demand for our Ontario Senior Dental program. We note that APH has requested an increase 
to base funding for the 100% funded Ontario Senior Dental program with the 2023 Annual Service Plan 
to fund these identified pressures. Although only a portion of our request has been approved to date, 
conversations with the Ministry related to required funding to maintain this program are ongoing and 
APH has been instructed to continue programming as planned, with in year funding opportunities to 
come to address ongoing pressures. 
 
Telecommunications 
There is a $21K negative variance associated with telecommunications driven by ongoing needs 
associated with implementation of retro-fitting our office telecommunication systems for current needs 
based on full staff return to the office (which will result in cost savings of at least $3K per month moving 
forward).  
 
COVID-19 Expenses 
 
COVID-19 Response 
This program includes case and contact management as well as supporting the information phone lines.  
August year to date expenses were $192K (versus $1,868K this time last year).   
 
COVID-19 Mass Immunization 
This program includes the planning, support, documentation, and actual needles in arms of the various 
COVID-19 vaccines. August year to date expenses were $167K (versus $936K this time last year).     
 
The majority of these costs consist of salaries and benefits costs of APH staff associated with the hours 
committed year to date to COVID response activities (versus work completed under normal ‘home’ 
program delivery). 
 
 
 
 

Page 24 of 116

Page 21 of 161



Notes Continued… 

 

Financial Position - Balance Sheet (see page 7) 
 
APH’s liquidity position continues to be stable and the bank has been reconciled as of September 30, 
2023.  Cash includes $2.1M in short-term investments.  
 
Long-term debt of $4.1 million is held by TD Bank @ 1.80% for a 60-month term (amortization period of 
120 months) and matures on September 1, 2026.  $239k of the loan relates to the financing of the Elliot 
Lake office renovations, which occurred in 2015 with the balance, related to the financing of the 294 
Willow Avenue facility located in Sault Ste. Marie.  There are no material accounts receivable collection 
concerns.  

Page 25 of 116

Page 22 of 161



(Unaudited)
September December

2023 2022

Assets

Current
Cash & Investments $ 4,591,425 $ 6,759,408
Accounts Receivable 646,001 1,550,507
Receivable from Municipalities 21,630 6,482                  
Receivable from Province of Ontario

Subtotal Current Assets 5,259,056        8,316,397           

Financial Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 1,018,930 1,319,570
   Payable to Gov't of Ont/Municipalities 2,274,387 4,628,303
   Deferred Revenue 271,319 317,901
   Employee  Future Benefit Obligations 2,849,656 2,849,656
   Term Loan 3,702,106 3,702,106

Subtotal Current Liabilities 10,116,398 12,817,535         

Net Debt (4,857,342) (4,501,139)

Non-Financial Assets:
   Building 23,012,269 23,012,269
   Furniture & Fixtures 2,113,823 2,113,823
   Leasehold Improvements 1,583,166 1,583,166
   IT 3,284,893 3,284,893
   Automobile 40,113 40,113
   Accumulated Depreciation -12,619,708 -12,619,708

Subtotal Non-Financial Assets 17,414,556 17,414,556

Accumulated Surplus 12,557,214 12,913,417

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Financial Position

Date:  As of September 2023

Page 26 of 116

Page 23 of 161



Page 27 of 116

Page 24 of 161



 
 

i 
 

Contents 
1. Budget Summary 1 

2. 2024 Budget Background 4 
2.1 State of Public Health Funding and Financial Pressures 4 

2.1.1 Provincial Announcements, Anticipated Changes, and Uncertainties 4 
2.1.2 Inflation and Sub-Inflationary Increases to Public Health Funding 6 
2.1.3 End of Extraordinary COVID-19 Funding 7 
2.1.4 Public Health Workforce Expansion during the Pandemic Response 9 

2.2 Strategies to Mitigate the Impact of Financial Pressures 10 
2.2.1 Maximizing One-Time and/or 100% Funding 10 
2.2.2 Seeking Additional Funding 10 
2.2.3 Identifying Efficiencies and Potential for Cost-Savings 10 
2.2.4 Aligning Prioritized Work to Core Functions 11 
2.2.5 Voluntary Retirement Incentive Program (VRIP) 12 
2.2.6 Workforce Reduction Planning 12 

3. Public Health Human Resource Overview 13 

4. 2024 Budget Financial Assumptions 14 

5. 2023 Grant Approval 15 

6. Reserve Funds 16 

7. Recommended 2024 Budget 16 
7.1 Operating Revenue 16 

7.1.1 Review of the Provincial-Municipal Cost Sharing Formula 16 
7.1.2 Provincial 16 
7.1.3 Municipal 17 

7.2 Expenditures 19 
7.2.1 Salary and Benefit Changes 19 
7.2.2 Operating Expenditure Changes 19 

8. Capital Budget 20 

9. Conclusions 21 

Appendix A 22 

Appendix B 23 
 

Page 28 of 116

Page 25 of 161



 

1 
 

Issue 
Approval is being sought for the recommended 2024 Capital & Operating Budget for Algoma 
Public Health (APH). The draft budget was developed by the Executive Team and is 
recommended by the Medical Officer of Health. It is to be reviewed at the November 15, 2023, 
meeting of the Board of Health Finance & Audit Committee. 

Recommended Action 
THAT the Finance & Audit Committee of the Board of Health for the District of Algoma 
Health Unit approve the 2024 Capital & Operating Budget for Algoma Public Health in the 
amount of $17,242,178. 

Alignment to the Ontario Public Health Standards (2021)1 

• As part of the Organizational Requirements: Fiduciary Requirements Domain, boards of health 
are accountable for using Ministry of Health (Ministry) funding efficiently and for its intended 
purpose and ensuring that resources are used efficiently and in line with local and provincial 
requirements. 

• As part of the Organizational Requirements: Good Governance and Management Practices 
Domain, the board of health shall provide governance direction to the administration and 
ensure that the board of health remains informed about the activities of the organization on the 
following: delivery or programs and services; organizational effectiveness through evaluation 
of the organization and strategic planning; stakeholder relations and partnership building; 
research and evaluation; compliance with all applicable legislation and regulations; workforce 
issues, including recruitment of medical officer of health and any other senior executives; 
financial management; and risk management.  

• As part of the Foundational Standard: Emergency Management, the board of health shall 
effectively prepare for emergencies to ensure timely, integrated, safe, and effective response 
to, and recovery from emergencies with public health impacts. 

• The board of health shall ensure that administration implements appropriate financial 
management by ensuring that expenditure forecasts are as accurate as possible.  

• To support municipal budget planning, APH attempts to advise contributing municipalities of 
their respective levies as early as possible. 

1. Budget Summary  

As context, the 2023 approved budget was $17,740,689. This included $1.1M in anticipated one-
time COVID-19 extraordinary costs, based on the province’s commitment to reimburse APH for 
further extraordinary COVID-19 expenses that could not be recovered by mandatory programs. As 
of September 30, 2023 (per APH’s submitted third quarter standards activity report), it was 
forecasted that anticipated needs for COVID-19 extraordinary costs were $621K versus the 
original ask of $1.1M. 

The recommended 2024 budget for public health programs and services is $17,242,178. 
This represents a decrease of $205,193 from the 2023-forecast budget.  

The recommended budget is driven by historic and forecasted sub-inflationary provincial base 
funding, rises in inflation, and requirements to continue COVID-19 response and immunization 
work in the absence of Ministry COVID-19 extraordinary funding, which will end December 31, 
2023, and impact mandatory public health program budgets. 

The Executive Team has worked diligently in the current dynamic fiscal environment to balance 
pressures and ensure the maintenance and restoration of quality public health programs, as 

 
1 Ministry of Health. Ontario public health standards: Requirements for programs, services, and accountability: Protecting and promoting the health of Ontarians [Internet]. 2021 
[cited 2023 Oct 28]. Available from: https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/ 

Page 29 of 116

Page 26 of 161



 

2 
 

aligned with agency values of excellence, respect, accountability and transparency, and 
collaboration.2  

The breakdown of the recommended 2024 operating budget of $17,242,178 is provided in Table 
1.0. 

As a comparison of pre-pandemic (2019) to pandemic period budgets (2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 
budget and forecast), a Budget Analysis is also provided in Table 1.0. Comparisons can be made 
between the recommended 2024 budget ($17,242,178) and the 2023-forecast budget 
($17,447,372). The 2023-forecast budget presented is conservatively based on current funding 
allocations confirmed by the province combined with COVID-19 programming spend as 
forecasted with the third quarter standards activity report submitted to the province (as although 
COVID-19 one-time extraordinary funding for 2023 has been committed by the province, at the 
time of writing APH has yet to receive formal approval for same). 

As evident in Table 1.0, and for all programs except those 100% provincially funded for 2024, 
APH’s budget recommendation is built assuming there will a 6% or $251,353 increase to the 
total municipal levy rate applied as a district.   

The following sections provide details on key 2024 budget factors. 

 
2 Algoma Public Health. About us [Internet]. N.d. [cited 2023 Oct 28]. Available from: https://www.algomapublichealth.com/ 

Page 30 of 116

Page 27 of 161



 

3 
 

Table 1.0: Budget Analysis, 2019 – Recommended 2024 

Province Portion of Jointly Funded Programs 7,523,200 8,703,177 8,712,804 8,773,422 8,795,200 8,861,200 10,020,210 13.9% 13.1%
100% Provincially Funded Programs 3,405,823 2,027,810 4,469,296 3,455,953 3,266,089 2,906,772 2,286,800 -30.0% -21.3%
Province Mitigation Fund 0 1,037,800 1,037,800 1,037,800 1,037,800 1,037,800 0 -100.0% -100.0%
Municipal Levies 3,519,703 3,559,232 3,808,378 4,189,216 4,189,216 4,189,216 4,440,569 6.0% 6.0%
Other Recoveries and Fees 688,282 503,127 455,882 459,114 452,384 452,384 494,600 9.3% 9.3%
Total 15,137,008 15,831,146 18,484,160 17,915,505 17,740,689 17,447,372 17,242,179 -2.8% -1.2%

Expenses:
Salaries and Wages 8,838,252 9,523,270 10,856,463 10,417,870 10,699,084 10,473,737 10,236,246 -4.3% -2.3%
Benefits 2,148,254 2,225,203 2,098,164 2,408,728 2,512,002 2,503,588 2,665,034 6.1% 6.4%
Travel 214,809 103,453 143,484 138,138 158,800 156,338 174,525 9.9% 11.6%
Program 624,709 642,120 1,468,959 1,380,781 1,237,163 1,209,790 1,012,197 -18.2% -16.3%
Equipment 75,417 89,026 103,245 82,545 20,000 20,000 30,000 50.0% 50.0%
Office 84,585 46,451 68,291 56,380 82,400 82,400 60,400 -26.7% -26.7%
Computer Services 768,076 750,708 716,738 850,406 875,895 875,895 896,000 2.3% 2.3%
Telecommunications 260,123 290,550 365,098 326,935 265,000 273,840 244,000 -7.9% -10.9%
Program Promotion 145,489 55,557 124,343 145,166 125,424 121,035 70,605 -43.7% -41.7%
Facilities Leases 172,465 162,414 166,901 184,172 194,000 194,000 207,000 6.7% 6.7%
Building Maintenance 864,553 711,183 1,173,229 1,095,440 730,000 695,828 770,000 5.5% 10.7%
Fees & Insurance 238,689 251,994 311,961 362,383 383,500 383,500 418,750 9.2% 9.2%
Expense Recoveries -109,670 -135,109 -82,613 -6,750 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0%
Debt Management (I & P) 460,900 460,900 460,900 457,420 457,421 457,421 457,421 0.0% 0.0%
Total 14,786,651 15,177,719 17,975,163 17,899,614 17,740,689 17,447,372 17,242,178 -2.8% -1.2%

Surplus/(Deficit) 350,357$    653,426$        508,997$       15,891$      0$                  $              0 0$                

% Change
2024 

Budget vs 
2023 

Budget

2024 
Budget vs 

2023 
Forcast

Revenues Summary 2019
Actual

2020
Actual

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2023
Budget

2023
Forecast

2024
Budget

Page 31 of 116

Page 28 of 161



 

4 
 

2. 2024 Budget Background 

To provide context for the recommended 2024 budget and increase in the total municipal levy rate 
applied to the district, a background is being shared to explain: 

• The state of public health funding and factors posing financial pressures for 2024, including 
recent provincial announcements and anticipated public health sector changes, inflation and historic 
and forecasted sub-inflationary increases to public health provincial base funding, the end of 
extraordinary COVID-19 funding, and the addition of significant FTE during the pandemic years.   

• Strategies enacted by APH to mitigate the impact of financial pressures and recommend a 
balanced budget, including maximizing sources of one-time and/or 100% provincial funding, 
seeking additional funding sources, identifying efficiencies and potential for cost-savings, aligning 
our work to the core functions of public health and partners, offering a voluntary retirement incentive 
program, and planning for workforce reduction. 

The recommended budget, balanced through strategies enacted to mitigate the impact of financial 
pressures and recommended increase in municipal levy contributions, reinforces the minimum financial 
requirements needed to sustain COVID-19 response and immunization programming and continue the 
provision of mandatory public health programs and services to promote and protect community health 
and advance health equity across Algoma.2  

2.1 State of Public Health Funding and Financial Pressures  
Public health sector changes are anticipated in 2024-2026 and will impact the funding and 
responsibilities of local public health. There is uncertainty with regards to how this period of change will 
impact APH and the provision of public health services and programs to local communities.    

However, there are four primary factors underpinning financial pressures being faced by local public 
health and reinforcing the need for (a) APH actions to mitigate the impact of financial pressures and (b) 
an increase in municipal levy to balance the proposed budget.  

Four primary factors include: 

• Recent provincial funding announcements and anticipated public health sector changes,  

• Impacts of inflation and historic and forecasted sub-inflationary increases to public health provincial 
base funding, 

• The end of extraordinary COVID-19 funding, and  

• Public health workforce expansion during the pandemic response, which are described below.  

2.1.1 Provincial Announcements, Anticipated Changes, and Uncertainties  
On September 27, 2023, a briefing note was provided to the Board of Health to provide situational 
awareness of public health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026, and background on the structure 
and governance of local public health, funding of local public health, APH, and the local public health 
context in northeastern Ontario.3  

In August 2023, the provincial government announced intentions to:  

1. Conduct a review of the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS)1, with an intent to identify roles 
and responsibilities that can be refined or stopped, and/or “re-levelled” to a regional or provincial 
level and implement a revised OPHS by January 1, 2025. 

The OPHS were established in 2009, and experienced comprehensive revision in 2018 with 

 
3 Loo J. Briefing note: BOH situational awareness of public health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026 [Internet]. 2023 [cited 2023 Oct 28]. Available from: 
https://www.algomapublichealth.com/media/6803/meeting-book-september-27-2023-board-of-health-meeting-website.pdf 

Page 32 of 116

Page 29 of 161



 

5 
 

subsequent updates in specific program areas in June 2021, including the addition and broadening 
of several public health program areas. 1,4 The history of public health is characterized by an 
evolving tension over its scope – narrow and focused on combatting disease and sanitation, or 
expansive and focused on addressing a wide range of preventive and upstream factors known to 
affect population health.5  

At the time of writing, outside of ongoing topic-specific opportunities to provide feedback to the 
OPHS, the province has not initiated a coordinated engagement of local public health units in the 
announced review of the OPHS. However, as part of routine work to evolve our public health 
programs and services to maximize our resources and avoid duplication of what other provincial and 
local partners are offering, APH has already been working to align prioritized work to the core 
functions of public health and services offered by provincial and local health and social service 
system partners, as further explained in Section 2.2.4.  

2. Support a coordinated approach to voluntary mergers of local public health units through the 
development of criteria, parameters, and accountability mechanisms via stakeholder consultations in 
fall 2023, submission of proposals via the 2024 annual service plan (ASP) and budget submission, 
initiation of voluntary mergers by January 2025, with time-limited Merger Support Funding from 
2024-2026 to resource merger implementation and facilitate business continuity. 

Over the past century, Ontario has transitioned from having 800 boards of health to the current state 
of 34 public health units.4 At the time of writing, the Ministry has released overarching objectives to 
support voluntary mergers, which cover critical mass, organizational performance, human resources, 
and system alignment and partnerships.6 Of note, the Ministry’s critical mass criteria sets a minimum 
health unit population base of 500,000, though it recognizes that in limited circumstances, mergers 
of geographically large, remote, and sparsely populated local public health agencies may result in 
geographic challenges that outweigh the benefits of achieving this minimum population base.6 

An in-person meeting in November 2023 in the north east with the Chief Medical Officer of Health, 
senior ministry officials, and other northeastern Ontario medical officers of health is anticipated to 
further inform the engagement process and expected pathways forward on voluntary mergers in the 
region.  

The presence of the new, 100% time-limited Merger Support Funding is expected to cover all 
merger-related transition costs, along with business continuity expenses.6 However, the provision of 
funding is likely contingent on public health units proceeding with a provincially approved merger 
and the timing of merger support funding approval remains uncertain, possibly summer/fall of 2024, 
if the launch of the merger proposal submission process remains through the 2024 ASP, as 
originally proposed by the ministry.  

3. Conduct a review of the ministry’s funding methodology for public health, with a new funding 
approach to be communicated in spring of 2025 and implemented in 2026; and meanwhile provide 
stable funding for the local public health sector during this period of change by 

(a) returning health unit base funding to levels previously provided in 2020 (i.e., prior to 
the change in the municipal cost-share ratio from 75:25 to 70:30); and 

(b) providing an increase in base funding of 1% per year over the three years from 2024-
2026. 

For historical context, in 2020, the province shifted the cost-share formula to 70% provincial, 30% 
municipal, and incorporated nine previously 100% funded programs into the general pool of 
mandatory programs that are cost-shared with municipalities. From 2020 to 2023, the province 
provided annual, one-time mitigation funding to public health units to offset increased public health 
program costs of municipalities because of the cost-sharing change. There was no increase to 

 
4 Association of local public health agencies (alPHa). Milestones and History: History of public health units in Ontario. N.d. [cited 2023 Sept 18]. Available from: 
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/milestones 
5 National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. A Population Health Workforce to Meet 21st Century Challenges and Opportunities: Proceedings of a Workshop [Internet]. 2023 
[cited 2023 Nov 4]. Available from https://nap.nationalacademies.org/catalog/27232/a-population-health-workforce-to-meet-21st-century-challenges-and-
opportunities?utm_source=HMD+Email+List&utm_campaign=be6c81fa9d-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_08_29_06_29&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-be6c81fa9d-
%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D&mc_cid=be6c81fa9d&mc_eid=8b76a4e962 
6 Ministry of Health, Office of Chief Medical Officer of Health, Public Health. Strengthening public health: Outcomes and objectives to support voluntary mergers [Internal Document]. 2023 
[cited 2023 October 30].  

Page 33 of 116

Page 30 of 161

https://nap.nationalacademies.org/catalog/27232/a-population-health-workforce-to-meet-21st-century-challenges-and-opportunities?utm_source=HMD+Email+List&utm_campaign=be6c81fa9d-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_08_29_06_29&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-be6c81fa9d-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D&mc_cid=be6c81fa9d&mc_eid=8b76a4e962
https://nap.nationalacademies.org/catalog/27232/a-population-health-workforce-to-meet-21st-century-challenges-and-opportunities?utm_source=HMD+Email+List&utm_campaign=be6c81fa9d-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_08_29_06_29&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-be6c81fa9d-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D&mc_cid=be6c81fa9d&mc_eid=8b76a4e962
https://nap.nationalacademies.org/catalog/27232/a-population-health-workforce-to-meet-21st-century-challenges-and-opportunities?utm_source=HMD+Email+List&utm_campaign=be6c81fa9d-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_08_29_06_29&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-be6c81fa9d-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D&mc_cid=be6c81fa9d&mc_eid=8b76a4e962


 

6 
 

provincial mitigation funding from 2020-2023. Further, from 2019 to 2021, there were no provincial 
increases to public health base funding. A 1% increase was provided to provincial public health base 
funding in each of 2022 and 2023.  

As explained in detail in Sections 2.1.2 and 2.1.3, provincial funding for local public health during 
the period of change from 2024-2026 continues to be insufficient to maintain operations. This is 
primarily due to inflation and sub-inflationary increases to public health funding that are anticipated 
to continue, and the end of extraordinary COVID-19 funding that will necessitate use of mandatory 
program budgets to cover costs associated with continued COVID-19 response and immunization 
that have not traditionally been managed within these budgets.  

The Board Chair and Medical Officer of Health are seeking opportunities to engage with the Ministry 
of Health, alongside Northern Ontario municipal and Indigenous partners where appropriate, with 
regards to the provincial review of the funding methodology for public health, such that the realities 
of northern community health needs and public health service delivery in the north are accurately 
represented for consideration.  

At the time of writing, APH has not yet been engaged in the review of the ministry’s funding 
methodology for public health.  

Provincial communication frames these initiatives as aiming to optimize capacity, stability, and 
sustainability in the public health sector. The province identifies its strategy as grounded in a locally 
driven approach, equipped with provincial resources to facilitate change while ensuring frontline jobs 
and local public health programs and services are retained and strengthened.  

Engagement with Northern PHUs, partners, and the province is anticipated to begin in Fall 2023 and 
continue into 2024. These efforts will require time and resources from Executive and Leadership.  

2.1.2 Inflation and Sub-Inflationary Increases to Public Health Funding  
The historic and continued gap between provincial base funding and general inflation has resulted in 
ongoing financial pressures for local public health. 

Since 2016, provincial increases to base funding for cost-shared programs has cumulatively amounted 
to 5.9%. This cumulative increase includes allocated mitigation funding which the province has 
committed to rolling back into base funding allocations in 2024. 

The status quo in provincial base funding (i.e., base funding returned to 2020 levels), with the 
announced 1% growth to base funding in 2024, remains insufficient to meet ongoing inflationary 
pressures which are estimated at 23.6% since 2016.  

During the pandemic, these inflationary pressures were not as restrictive in budget planning, as APH 
had access to one-time COVID-19 extraordinary dollars to fund the ongoing work required to address 
our response to COVID-19, which represented the bulk of APH’s work in 2020 through 2022. This 
funding will end as of December 31, 2023 – adding additional pressure to current base funding dollars 
as we routinize COVID-19 work into standard program delivery.  

Figure 1.0 summarizes historical trends in APH funding (both provincial and municipal sources) as 
compared to average Canadian inflation rates.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 
7 Statistics Canada. Consumer price index, annual average, not seasonally adjusted [Internet]. 2023 [cited 2023 Oct 10]. Available from:  
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1810000501&pickMembers%5B0%5D=1.2&cubeTimeFrame.startYear=2016&cubeTimeFrame.endYear=2022&referencePeriods=20160
101%2C20220101 

Page 34 of 116

Page 31 of 161



 

7 
 

Figure 1.0: Public Health Funding vs. Canadian Inflation Rates7, 2017-2023 

 
As a summary of cumulative increases from 2016 -20238 displayed in Figure 1.0:  

• Municipal levy increased 23.22%.  

• Inflation has increased 23.60%.  

• Provincial base funding, including temporary mitigation funding, increased 5.90%.  

As depicted in Figure 1.0, aside from an increase to provincial base funding in 2018 alongside release 
of revised OPHS, provincial base funding has not kept pace with inflation, necessitating valuable 
contributions from municipal levy to sustain the core functions of public health and service to Algoma 
communities.  

Provincial funding for public health, in addition to not keeping pace with inflation, remains a relatively low 
portion of Ministry of Health spending despite recognition that investment in public health generates 
significant return on better health, lower health care costs, and a stronger economy. 9 According to the 
2018-19 former Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care Expenditure Estimates, the operating estimate 
for the entire Population and Public Health Program (which includes internal Ministry expenses, funding 
for Public Health Ontario and the local grants) was about 2% of the total Ministry operating expenses.9 

2.1.3 End of Extraordinary COVID-19 Funding  
APH’s robust COVID-19 response and immunization efforts have had tremendous success in protecting 
residents from a once-in-a-century infectious disease threat. The work associated with COVID-19 has 
required an unprecedented quantity of resources, including expenses reported to the Ministry for 
reimbursement as COVID-19 response and COVID-19 vaccine extraordinary cost.  

From 2020 to 2023, approved one-time COVID-19 funding was provided to offset extraordinary costs 
associated with the pandemic response.  

As of Q3 2023 projections, APH anticipates $621,000 in COVID-19 response and immunization labour 
costs to be reimbursed through extraordinary funding for 2023.  

Looking into 2024, COVID-19 has not and will not go away indefinitely, but will instead become a 
disease of public health significance that will require ongoing attention by public health. For response, 

 
8 Note: To derive 2017 percentage increases, 2016 values were used as a comparator, though not displayed in Figure 1.0.  
9 Association of Local Public Health Agencies. Public health matters. 2022 [cited 2023 November 6]. Available from: alPHa_Public_Health_Matters_2022.pdf (ymaws.com) 

Page 35 of 116

Page 32 of 161

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_Public_Health_Matters_2022.pdf


 

8 
 

this means that there will be ongoing need for COVID-19 activities within existing functions, including 
case and outbreak management, surveillance, public communications, immunization, and infection 
prevention and control support for facilities. 

However, extraordinary funding will be ending as of December 31, 2023. Therefore, costs associated 
with continued COVID-19 response and immunization efforts into 2024 and beyond must be absorbed 
by mandatory program budgets.  

Table 2.0 and Table 3.0 provide an overview of COVID-19 response and immunization hours, labour 
costs, and third-party expenses from 2020-2023, as compared to the number of outbreaks in Algoma 
and COVID-19 vaccines delivered at APH-led or supported clinics.  

Table 2.0: COVID-19 Outbreaks, Response Hours, and Labour Costs, 2020 – September 2023 

COVID-19 Response 

Year 2020  
(Mar – Dec) 

2021  
(Jan – Dec) 

2022  
(Jan – Dec) 

2023  
(Jan – Sept) 

Summary of  
2020 –2023 

 
COVID-19 

Outbreaks10 3 71 136 35 245  

Hours 74,735 90,409 40,106 2,753 208,003  

Labour 
Costs $4,221,601  $4,783,861  $1,783,671  $173,191  $10,962,324   

Table 3.0: COVID-19 Immunizations, Immunization Hours, Labour Costs, and Third-Party Health 
Service Costs, 2021 – September 2023 

COVID-19 Immunization 

Year 2021  
(Jan – Dec) 

2022  
(Jan – Dec) 

2023  
(Jan – Sept)11 

Summary of  
2020 –2023  

COVID-19 Immunizations 
Administered at APH-led 

or supported clinics12 
119,163 25,101 2083 146,347  

Hours 62,615 20,108 1,527 84,250  

Labour Costs $2,879,125  $844,367  $142,073  $3,865,565   

3rd Party Health Services  $506,254  $52,847  $4,692  $563,793   

Coordinated efforts with health partners across Algoma has resulted in 83.8% of the eligible population 
in Algoma having at least one dose of COVID-19 vaccine, and 80.6% having completed their primary 
series as of October 30, 2023.13  

As is evident through a comparison between years, labour costs for COVID-19 response and 
immunization overall have decreased from 2021 to 2023.  

It is anticipated that COVID-19 related costs will continue to decline in 2024, though remain, as work to 
prevent, monitor, detect, and contain COVID-19, and organize and oversee the COVID-19 immunization 
campaign will continue to be part of the role of local public health.  

 
10 Public Health Case and Contact Management Solution (CCM) [Secure database]. 2023 [cited date 2023 Oct 31].  
Note: Case and contact management guidance provided by the Ministry of Health changed throughout the pandemic, therefore, work associated with cases, contact tracing, and outbreak 
management changed from 2020-2023, and outbreak definitions were updated over time.     
11 Note: The immunization season does not commence until October, which pairs with the start of the annual respiratory season. Therefore, the number of immunizations for Fall 2023/2024 
does not reflect the extent of administration that has and continues to occur across the district.   
12 IntelliHealth, COVAX [Secure database]. 2023 [cited date 2023 Oct 31]. 
Note: The volume of COVID-19 immunizations administered at APH-led or supported clinics was influenced by the COVID-19 vaccine rollout and the associated expansion of eligible groups, 
availability of doses, and the vast support provided by local partners (i.e., pharmacies, Indigenous health centres and organizations, primary care, hospitals, long-term care homes, and 
retirement homes, etc.).  
13 Capacity Planning and Analytics Division (CPAD). SAS Visual Analytics Hub. COVID-19 Vaccine resources [Secure database]. 2023 [cited 2023 Oct 31].  
Note: A fall 2023/24 booster dose includes those eligible in Algoma who received a booster dose on or after September 14, 2023. 

Page 36 of 116

Page 33 of 161



 

9 
 

2.1.4 Public Health Workforce Expansion during the Pandemic Response  
APH’s public health workforce expanded during the pandemic period, to support COVID-19 response 
and immunization efforts. In the last five years, the largest increase in total FTE was noted between 
2021-2022 (see Table 4.0).  

Table 4.0: FTE Analysis from 2019 (Pre-Pandemic) to 202314  

 
Within APH’s 2022 Budget15, the Board of Health approved the addition of 15 permanent FTE, including 
front-line and management positions, due to the immense need to maintain COVID-19 response and 
immunization efforts, and critical public health work as part of the early stages of pandemic recovery.  

There was uncertainty at that time of how long pandemic work would persist, requiring additional stable 
resources.  

One-time funding was geared towards curtailing the pandemic, as opposed to annual funding for the 
hiring of permanent staff to build long-term public health capacity to manage the emergency of today 
and prepare for emergencies of tomorrow. However, particularly in the northern Ontario context, one-
time funding was not amenable to the recruitment and retention of skilled public health professionals. 
Therefore, the 2022 budget supported the permanent addition of 15 FTE.  

APH experienced success with recruitment of the new, permanent positions. However, as the pandemic 
response has ramped down, so has the required size of our workforce. From 2022-2023, APH 
experienced a reduction of contracted/temporary positions that more closely resembles pre- and early 
pandemic periods.  

Workforce reduction, one of several strategies described below to reduce the impact of financial 
pressures, would not necessarily include a reduction of the same FTE created in 2022. This is due to 
the need to ensure alignment of public health human resources to current and anticipated priority public 
health work, as well as the need to support ongoing COVID-19 response and pandemic recovery catch-
up (e.g., COVID-19 outbreak management, COVID-19 immunizations, school-based routine vaccine 
catch-up, RSV, mental health and substance use, etc.).   

It is well understood that to meet the current needs of community health and reduce pressure on the 
health care system, there is a need for a workforce that is community and population health-oriented.16  

 
14 Note: One FTE = 1820 hours/year. Data for 2022 represents status as of November 7, 2022. Data for 2023 represents status as of November 6, 2023.   
15 Algoma Public Health. 2022 Recommended public health operating and capital budget report [Internet]. 2021 [cited 2023 Oct 28]. Available from: 
https://www.algomapublichealth.com/media/4972/meeting-book-november-24-2021-board-of-health-meeting-website.pdf 
16 Chiolero A. Care, cure, and if possible, prevent. The Lancet [Internet]. 2023 Nov [cited 2023 Nov 4]; 402(10413):1625. Available from: 
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/article/PIIS0140-6736(23)01415-0/fulltext 

Year Contract/Temp Permanent Total

149 

(+ 3 casual immunizers)
146

2022

2023

18 144
162

(+ 3 casual immunizers)

6

2021 25 123
148

(+ 6 casual immunizers)

2020 5 118 123

FTE Analysis

2019 3 121 124

Page 37 of 116

Page 34 of 161

https://www.algomapublichealth.com/media/4972/meeting-book-november-24-2021-board-of-health-meeting-website.pdf


 

10 
 

2.2 Strategies to Mitigate the Impact of Financial Pressures 
Due to factors imposing financial pressures described above, APH is unable to maintain all current 
operations and funding at status quo, as this would result in a deficit for 2024.  

To achieve a balanced budget, APH recognizes that we must prioritize the health needs of our Algoma 
communities, and bear in mind the impacts that any significant levy increases or workforce reductions 
would have on local municipalities and public health program and service delivery.  

Leadership has been working diligently since early 2023 to maximize one-time and 100% funded 
opportunities, seek additional funding opportunities, identify efficiencies, implement cost-saving 
measures, and align prioritized work to core public health functions and reduce duplication with 
provincial and community partners to aid with current financial pressures. In addition, a voluntary 
retirement incentive program was offered, and workforce reduction planning was initiated, all of which 
are further described below.    

2.2.1 Maximizing One-Time and/or 100% Funding 
To minimize the impact to public health cost-shared programs, APH continues to maximize one-time 
and/or 100% funding opportunities as available (e.g., Ontario Senior Dental Care Program (OSDCP), 
Infection Prevention and Control (IPAC) Hub, COVID-19 one-time funding for 2023).  

2.2.2 Seeking Additional Funding 
As part of routine operations, APH’s finance, foundational, and public health teams have been 
identifying opportunities to apply for external grant and project funding for the medium and long term. 
Grant funding, pending requirements, can provide additional, time-limited financial support for retaining 
or recruiting FTE and supporting priority public health work.  

Grant funding has provided benefit to APH in the past, to add FTE and conduct mandatory program 
work. For example, APH has previously received: 

• Canada Summer Jobs wage subsidies, to create quality summer work experiences for young people 
aged 15 to 30, which has supported administrative and project work across the agency.  

• Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) funding for internship positions, to support 
Human Resources, Communications, and Emergency Management.  

• Health Canada HealthADAPT17 funding, along with 6 other Northern health units in 2020, for a two-
year project to conduct a climate change and health vulnerability and adaptation assessment for 
Northern Ontario public health units.  

APH routinely explores and applies for relevant funding opportunities as they arise.  

Despite adding value, one-time funding poses recruitment and retention challenges for new positions 
that are only temporary in nature.  

In addition, reliance on one-time solutions to balance the budget for 2024 are not ideal, as current 
pressures are expected to outweigh funding growth for an indeterminable period. 

2.2.3 Identifying Efficiencies and Potential for Cost-Savings  
A leadership exercise was conducted in spring 2023 to identify efficiencies and implement cost-saving 
improvement projects. This included an intensive review of agency and program priorities, FTE, 
materials and supplies, travel, promotion, professional development, memberships, subscriptions, etc.  

Few examples of efficiencies identified leading to cost-saving included:  

• Information Technology (IT) and Corporate Services conducted a review of phone and IT related 
services, including internet provision, videoconferencing, fax services, etc. A review of phone lines 

 
17 Government of Canada. HealthADAPT [Internet]. 2023 [cited 2023 Oct 28]. Available from: https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/programs/health-adapt.html 

Page 38 of 116

Page 35 of 161



 

11 
 

and cell phone allocations has resulted in decreased number of lines and cell phones needed.  

• Facilities management began work on a project with the assistance of a third-party provider to 
assess energy use and potential for efficiencies/reductions, which are anticipated to yield future cost 
savings.  

• The implementation of an agency-wide district travel calendar to coordinate travel of staff throughout 
the district with delivery of program material and supplies between APH offices, which has reduced 
use of, and fees associated with, external delivery provider services.  

Opportunities to restrict expenses outside of labour and benefits alone to balance the recommended 
2024 budget were not feasible, as most items are non-discretionary (e.g., utilities, insurance, etc.) and 
this course of action would severely restrict program work moving forward that requires necessary 
resources for service delivery.  

Therefore, the intention was to maximize the use of available dollars where possible to continue 
prioritized health promotion and protection programming, as well as required COVID-19 response and 
immunization efforts, while assessing agency-wide opportunities for cost savings to help with financial 
pressures.  

2.2.4 Aligning Prioritized Work to Core Functions 
Despite provincial government intention to conduct a review of the OPHS, with an intent to identify roles 
and responsibilities that can be refined or stopped, and/or “re-levelled” to a regional or provincial level, it 
is likely that the public health approach will remain focused on the core functions of public health, as 
have changes to the OPHS in the past.  

The core functions of public health include18: 

• Population health assessment 

• Surveillance 

• Disease and injury prevention 

• Health promotion 

• Health protection 

• Emergency preparedness 

In summer 2023, APH updated Standard Implementation Plans (SIPs) used for program planning and 
conducted thorough review at the program level of community health needs/priorities and anticipated 
public health work in 2024, along with required FTE and material resources.   

To enact a population health approach, local public health must optimize cross-sector partnerships to 
maximize resource use and avoid duplication of services, as well as focus on upstream approaches to 
public health that are uniquely planned and implemented by public health.  

Few examples of strategic realignment include:  

• Working closely with community partners (i.e., pharmacies, primary care, hospitals, Indigenous 
health services, etc.) throughout the pandemic and into COVID-19 recovery to increase vaccine 
delivery channels and access to vaccination for Algoma residents. By optimizing cross-sector 
partnerships, access to influenza and COVID-19 vaccine across the district has significantly 
expanded. Unlike pre-pandemic years, APH has not had to divert resources from core programming 
to support immunization efforts in fall 2023, and instead can continue to provide the public health 
promotion and protection programming alongside seasonal vaccine campaigns. As of November 1st, 
2023, for the Fall 2023/24 season, pharmacies have administered 66.5% of COVID-19 doses across 
Algoma.19 Appointments for influenza and COVID-19 booster immunization continue to be available 

 
18 Canadian Public Health Association. Public health in the context of health system renewal in Canada [Internet]. 2019 [cited 2023 Nov 4]. Available from: https://www.cpha.ca/public-health-
context-health-system-renewal-canada 
19 Capacity Planning and Analytics Division (CPAD). SAS Visual Analytics Hub. COVID-19 Vaccine resources [Secure database]. 2023 [cited 2023 Nov 1]. 

Page 39 of 116

Page 36 of 161



 

12 
 

across the district for all age groups, and APH continues to offer appointments (by phone or walk-in) 
for priority groups, such as children aged 6 months to 2 years who are unable to access a primary 
care provider and unable to receive vaccination through local pharmacies.   

• Pivoting in-person services to online options during the pandemic, and taking opportunity to pause, 
assess, and realign public health services to address emerging needs and priority populations. For 
example, prenatal classes continue to be available through an online platform (InJoy). The Healthy 
Growth and Development program has been conducting situational assessments to better 
understand community needs, priority populations, and evidence-informed programs that will meet 
community needs for prenatal and parenting support.  

• Opting to end individual 1:1 smoking cessation services in 2024, as there are several free provincial 
smoking cessation services available. We will continue to support community providers in the 
promotion of tobacco cessation services at existing point-of-contact with clients. Public health is 
mandated to focus on comprehensive tobacco prevention, protection, and promotion, and there has 
been a long-standing need to shift resources from individual treatment to address the broader scope 
of our public health mandate to make an impact at the population level. 

• Reviewing and changing the Sexual Health Information Line, as there is now a provincial Sexual 
Health Infoline Ontario providing free, anonymous, and inclusive services staffed by counsellors who 
provide information, support, and referrals to Ontarians on sexual health topics. By leveraging 
provincial resources and minimizing duplication, APH will align staff to focus on core population 
health interventions that complement and augment existing provincial resources and services, to 
maximize impact at the local level.  

Although these program decisions precede the recognized financial pressures anticipated in 2024, they 
will positively contribute to maximizing use of public health human resources and skillsets, as well as 
material resources, to address priority public health issues and work towards health for all.  

Similarly, throughout 2023, work on updating Algoma’s Community Health Profile (CHP) has continued, 
which will provide a snapshot of health across Algoma. The report, anticipated to be released in 2024, 
will highlight both public health successes and priority health concerns that our communities need to 
focus on in the next few years.  

Public health programs have begun using preliminary data, community partner insights, and evidence-
informed frameworks to identify and plan for addressing public health priorities for 2024, which will 
require aligning public health resources accordingly (e.g., substance use prevention and harm 
reduction, prioritization of high-risk inspections, catch-up on school-aged immunizations, healthy 
sexuality/sexual health, mental health promotion, etc.).  

2.2.5 Voluntary Retirement Incentive Program (VRIP)  
As a measure to minimize impacts to our workforce, on October 12, 2023, APH shared information with 
all employees on the VRIP, an initiative providing access to a one-time only voluntary retirement 
incentive program that recognized and rewarded eligible employees for their service to the organization 
by providing them with the opportunity to apply to retire with certain retirement incentives.  

We congratulate and express gratitude to the APH employees who will be retiring and provided years of 
dedicated, quality public health service to protect and promote the health of communities in Algoma.  

2.2.6 Workforce Reduction Planning  
Workforce reduction has been planned for amongst other strategies to come to a balanced budget for 
2024 and minimize impact to the workforce. Workforce reduction strategies include (a) gapping existing 
vacancies where possible and (b) planning for permanent elimination of existing positions with 
consideration of our public health mandate and local public health priorities, as needed, based on the 
outstanding deficit projected after approval of municipal levy contributions for 2024. 

As a temporary measure, APH began gapping vacant positions in 2023 and continues to conduct 
monthly review of gapped funding dollars. Consolidating and/or eliminating vacant positions is less 

Page 40 of 116

Page 37 of 161



 

13 
 

disruptive for individual staff and has already been implemented where possible. 

Management-level FTE reductions have also been completed. At this time, compared to the beginning 
of 2023, the number of senior members of the executive team has been reduced by one, following the 
retirement of two directors, and the number of managers has also been reduced by two. In addition, 
several temporary staff contracts have been ended.   

Leadership has been carefully reviewing program priorities and opportunities for strategic realignment to 
minimize the need to reduce FTE through layoffs. However, given the anticipated 2024 funding, it is 
necessary for a limited workforce reduction that would achieve a balanced budget and preserve our 
ability to deliver our OPHS mandate and strategic priorities.  

An increase in municipal levy contributions would alleviate the magnitude of workforce reduction for 
2024, as further outlined in Section 7.1.3: Municipal of the report.  

Pending approval of the budget, any necessary workforce reduction would be communicated with staff 
and unions, and follow collective agreement processes, as appropriate. 

Position elimination/layoff will continue to be reviewed and assessed based on any new retirements, 
leaves, or vacancies that arise in Q4 2023 and throughout early 2024.  

3. Public Health Human Resource Overview   

Despite historic challenges in recruitment and retention of skilled public health professionals in Northern 
Ontario and limitations posed by one-time funding, APH was successful in recruitment throughout 2023. 

2023 Recruitment Snapshot  
A snapshot of 2023 health human resource recruitment indicators is provided below. From January – 
October 11, 2023:  

• Eleven (11) new permanent full-time and eight (8) new temporary employees have filled vacant 
positions.  

• Six (6) temporary staff hired in 2022/2023 were awarded permanent full-time positions.  

• Eight (8) permanent employees were successful candidate for other permanent positions (e.g., 
in another program, leadership, or new position).  

• Three (3) temporary full-time employees have secured other temporary positions (extending their 
contracts). 

• Three (3) permanent positions remain vacant in active recruitment.  

The total vacancies (3) in active recruitment at APH result in a 2.0% vacancy rate20, which is 
significantly lower than the vacancy rate experienced in October 2022 (11.04%).21 With recruitment 
efforts continuing, it is assumed these positions will be filled in 2024.  

Success Story: Recruitment of Public Health Inspectors  
Despite past challenges with recruitment of certified public health inspectors (PHIs), an issue shared 
among Northern public health units, APH experienced high success with PHI recruitment in 2023.  

PHIs working within the Infectious Diseases and Environmental Health programs have had a leading 
role in COVID-19 response, specifically with IPAC, outbreak management and application and 
enforcement of the Reopening Ontario Act.22 Outside of COVID-19, PHIs routinely evaluate and monitor 
health and safety hazards and implement progressive and innovative approaches to control risks and 

 
20 Note: Based on the total permanent employee FTE as of October 11, 2023, including three vacancies in recruitment (n=155.7).  
21 Algoma Public Health. 2023 Recommended capital and operating budget report [Internet]. 2022 [cited 2023 Nov 4]. Available from: 
https://www.algomapublichealth.com/media/6142/meeting-book-october-26-2022-board-of-health-meeting-website.pdf 
22 Government of Ontario. Reopening Ontario (a flexible response to COVID-19) act, 2020, S.O. 2020, c. 17 [Internet]. 2020 [cited 2023 Nov 4]. Available from: 
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/20r17 

Page 41 of 116

Page 38 of 161



 

14 
 

ensure compliance with government regulations that keep us safe.23 

As of October 2022, there were 5 PHI vacancies, including vacancies in SSM (3), Blind River (1), and 
Elliot Lake (1).21 As of November 6, 2023, there is only one (1) PHI vacancy outstanding in Blind River 
that remains in active recruitment.  

This success can be attributed to enhanced posting of positions to professional association and public 
career pages, the Manager of Environmental Health attending job/career fairs and hosting information 
sessions for learners, and direct forwarding of information to interested students through academic 
institutions with an accredited program.  

Recruitment has allowed the Environmental Health team to accelerate catch up on the backlog of 
inspections delayed due to pandemic response efforts and return to core health protection work and 
associated health promotion activities (e.g., food handler courses, food safety campaign, etc.).  

4. 2024 Budget Financial Assumptions 

Given the unknowns, several assumptions were required to base the 2024 estimated expenses and 
revenues. They are as follows:  

• Base funding for cost-shared mandatory programming will be restored to the level previously 
provided under the 2020 cost-share formula by reinstating $1,037,800 of mitigation funding back into 
base funding levels. 

• Base funding for cost-shared mandatory programs will increase at a rate of 1.0% per year, for 2024 
through 2026.  

• Cost-sharing mitigation funding with be discontinued as of December 31, 2023. 

• COVID-19 one-time extraordinary funding to support costs associated with APH’s response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic that cannot be managed within mandatory programs will be discontinued as of 
December 31, 2023. 

• One-time Infection Prevention and Control (IPAC) Hub funding will be discontinued as of March 31, 
2024 (current allocation of $603,400 for the 2023-24 fiscal year). APH has consistently received 
one-time funding for the IPAC Hub since fiscal 2020-21. Confirmation of further cycles of this funding 
has traditionally been communicated late in the fiscal year. At the time of writing, the Ministry has yet 
to provide communication regarding the potential of IPAC Hub funding continuing into the 2024-25 
fiscal year, and as such this potential funding has been omitted from 2024 budget planning. 

• The available upcoming 100% merger support funding is contingent upon public health unit 
commitment to a ministry-approved merger, which at the time of writing APH has not committed to. 
Should APH pursue a potential merger, any possible funding availability may not materialize until 
late summer/early fall 2024 (which is the typical time frame within which we would receive formal 
funding and accountability agreements from the province based on ASP submission). For this 
reason, this potential funding has been omitted from 2024 budget planning. 

• No additional funding will be provided by the Ministry to fund COVID-19 recovery or workforce 
initiatives. These anticipated costs will be managed within mandatory program base funding, 
impacting the restoration of programs and services as public health continues with pandemic 
recovery.  

• A 6% increase to the total municipal levy rate applied by the District of Algoma Health Unit will be 
implemented.  

• As per the 2023 funding and accountability agreement, the Ministry will continue to support the 
Northern Ontario Fruit and Vegetable and Indigenous Communities programs at 100%, in addition to 
Mandatory Programs for Unorganized Territories, MOH/AMOH Compensation Initiative, and the 

 
23 Ministry of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development. Inspectors in public and environmental health and occupational health and safety, NOC 2263. 2018 [cited 2023 Nov 6]. 
Available from: https://www23.statcan.gc.ca/imdb/p3VD.pl?Function=getVD&TVD=122372&CVD=122376&CPV=2263&CST=01012011&CLV=4&MLV=4 

Page 42 of 116

Page 39 of 161



 

15 
 

Ontario Senior Dental Care Program (OSDCP).  

Of note, for the 2023 funding year, APH was allocated 100% funding for the OSDCP program in the 
amount of $1,382,700 to support ongoing pressures identified in this program (increased from 
$1,252,900 in 2022). For the 2024 budget, the Executive Team assumed that 100% provincial 
funding for the OSDCP program will remain at 2023 funding allocation levels to meet program needs 
in the coming year. 

• COVID-19 response and immunization incremental costs are to be managed within APH’s base 
allocation for cost-shared mandatory programming and will be routinized as a part of APH’s core 
infectious disease and immunization work. 

• Assumptions related to staffing are as follows: 

o A vacancy factor of 2% has been incorporated into overall salaries, wages, and benefits 
($263K).  

For comparison purposes, in pre-pandemic years (2018-2019) APH’s vacancy rate is 
estimated to have ranged between 2% and 4%, peaking in 2021-2022 at an estimated 7-11% 
due to competitive labour markets and small labour pools, and has since been restored to an 
estimated 1-2% at time of writing in 2023. 

• Fixed non-salary budgeted costs related to facilities, such as utilities and service contracts, have 
been estimated based on historical data, current contract rates, and assumed inflationary rates with 
a combined year over year increase of 12% over the 2023 approved budget. A contingency 
representing 15% of the budgeted service contracts has been factored to support unforeseen 
necessary costs.  

• APH’s debt payment plan will continue to be managed with existing resources.  

• Notwithstanding the need to prioritize programming in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic 
recovery and identified local priorities, the requirements of boards of health remain the same, as 
articulated in the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA)24, related regulations, the OPHS, and 
related protocols and guidelines.  

5. 2023 Grant Approval  

The 2023 Ministry Program Based Grant approval was received and last revised as of August 2023.   

• APH was allocated a 1% increase to the Mandatory Cost-Shared Program base funding for total 
2023 funding of $8,883,200, increased from $8,795,200 in 2022. The 1% increase for 2023 was pro-
rated for the months of April through December, resulting in the true funding allocation for 2023 to be 
$8,861,200 (a 0.75% increase over 2022). 

• The grant allocation for the 100% provincial funding for Unorganized Territories/Mandatory 
Programs ($530,400), Unorganized Territories/ Indigenous Communities Program ($98,000) and the 
Unorganized Territories/Northern Fruit and Vegetable Program ($117,400) remained unchanged.  

• The Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program (OSDCP) was allocated an additional $129,800 above 
2022 funding levels based on current and ongoing pressures identified in the program. The 2023 
funding levels are allocated at $1,382,700, increased from $1,252,900 in 2022. The increase for 
2023 was pro-rated for the months of April through December, resulting in the true funding allocation 
for 2023 to be $1,350,250. 

• The MOH/AMOH compensation initiative will continue to be based on the actual status of current 
MOH and AMOH positions.  

 
24 Government of Ontario. Health protection and promotion act, R.S.O. 1990, c.H7 [Internet]. 2021 [cited 2023 Nov 4]. Available from: https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07 

Page 43 of 116

Page 40 of 161



 

16 
 

6. Reserve Funds 

As part of fiscally sound management, the Board of Health has long-established reserve funds for the 
agency since 2017. Reserve funds have been accumulated via excess municipal contributions due to an 
overestimate of expenses.  

Financial reserves are a prudent and expedient way to provide the agency with resources for 
unforeseen emergencies, known future infrastructure investments and future planned projects that 
support the mission, vision, and strategic goals of APH.  

The reserve funds balance totals $2.1M, which could support approximately 1.5 months of operations.  

7. Recommended 2024 Budget 

7.1 Operating Revenue 
The 2024 operating revenues include Ministry funding for mandatory programs (historically cost shared), 
Ministry funding for other related programs (historically 100% provincially funded), Ministry Unorganized 
Territories funding, municipal funding by 21 municipalities, and interest and user fees.  

There is no change in Unorganized Territories funding. The Executive team is recommending a 6.0% 
increase to municipal funding over 2023.  

7.1.1 Review of the Provincial-Municipal Cost Sharing Formula  
As of November 2023, the province has stated that they do not have a specific cost-share ratio 
expectation for 2024 or beyond.  

The province has intentions to conduct a review of the ministry’s funding methodology for public health 
and communicate a new funding approach in spring of 2025, to be implemented in 2026. Public health 
units across the province currently have varying cost-share ratios; as indicated via current in year 
reporting, we are aware of municipal contributions to public health budgets as low as 25% and high as 
40%.  

Traditionally, the Board of Health for Algoma Health Unit has contributed more than the previously 
communicated cost-sharing ratio of 70:30, with the intention to contribute any surplus municipal levy 
contributions to the reserve funds.  

For the recommended 2024 budget, the Executive Team assumed maintenance of a 70:30 cost-share 
ratio. At the recommended 6% overall increase in the levy from obligated municipalities within the 
District of Algoma Health Unit, the cost-share ratio would be estimated at 30.7:69.3.  

7.1.2 Provincial 
The provincial government can grant funding to local public health as deemed appropriate and has 
shared responsibilities for the co-funding and delivery of provincial health programs, like public health, 
with municipal governments. 25  

Pursuant to section 76 of the Health Protection & Promotion Act, the Minister may make grants for the 
purposes of this Act on such conditions as he or she considers appropriate.24   

There are few public health programs that receive one-time or 100% grant funding from the Ministry of 
Health (e.g., Ontario Senior Dental Care Program), with most programs and services being cost-shared.  

 
25 Smith R, Allin S, Rosella L, et al. Profiles of public health systems in Canda: Ontario [Internet]. 2021 [cited 2023 November 9]. Available from: https://ccnpps-ncchpp.ca/docs/2021-Profiles-
of-Public-Health-Systems-in-Canada-Ontario.pdf 

Page 44 of 116

Page 41 of 161



 

17 
 

7.1.3 Municipal 
Municipal governments have a direct, legislated responsibility for financing public health programs and 
services and contribute to the funding of cost-shared programs. 25  

Pursuant to section 72 of the Health Protection & Promotion Act, obligated municipalities in a health unit 
shall pay, 

(a) The expenses incurred by or on behalf of the board of health of the health unit in the performance of 
its functions and duties under the HPPA or any other act; and 

(b) The expenses incurred by or on behalf of the MOH of the board of health in the performance of his 
or her functions and duties under the HPPA or any other Act. 24 

As part of the recommended 2024 Operating & Capital Budget, the Executive Team is recommending a 
6% overall increase in the levy from obligated municipalities within the District of Algoma Health Unit. 
This equates to a $251,353 increase in revenues apportioned across the 21 municipalities in Algoma. 
Rates apportioned among the municipalities reflect current population counts per the 2021 Census 
Profile issued by Statistics Canada26 (see Appendix A). 

For context, Table 5.0 illustrates historical changes in municipal levy rates in Algoma from 2012 – 2024 
(recommended). 

Table 5.0: APH Historical Approved Levy Increase, 2012 – 2024 (Recommended)   

 
The approved levies from 2020 to 2023 apportioned among the 21 municipalities within Algoma, and 
comparison to the recommended levy for 2024 are detailed in Appendix A.  

When compared to total municipal revenues for those municipalities which we were able to obtain 
current data (2021-2022), municipalities in the Algoma District have traditionally spent less than 1.5% of 
revenues on public health levies.  

As evidenced through the programs and services provided by public health, municipalities across 
Algoma receive robust support for effective COVID-19 response and immunization, health protection, 
health promotion, and disease prevention among residents.     

Value for Money: Per Capita Rate 
When looking at the value for public health, as of 2023, the cost per capita in Algoma for public health 
services and programs was $40.44/person when using population counts from the 2021 Census Profile 

 
26 Statistics Canada. Census profile, 2021 census of population [Internet]. 2022 [cited 2023 Oct 10]. Available from: https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/dp-
pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E 

Year Levy Increase

2012 2.00%
2013 1.00%
2014 2.00%
2015 4.16%
2016 4.50%
2017 2.50%
2018 0.50%
2019 0.50%
2020 1.12%
2021 7.00%
2022 10.00%
2023 0.00%
2024 6.00% (Budgeted)

Page 45 of 116

Page 42 of 161



 

18 
 

by Statistics Canada 26 ($46.01 when covered to MPAC 2018). The forecasted 2024 cost per capita is 
estimated at $42.87/person.  

When compared to Northern health units, as of 2023, APH’s per capita rate ranked in the middle when 
using MPAC figures. Northern health unit per capita rates ranged from $29.57/person to $63.20/person, 
for those PHUs that responded to an APH inquiry on per capita rates conducted in fall 2023.  

For context, the Board of Health has experienced the historical growth shown in Table 6.0 with respect 
to the public health per capita rates in Algoma.  

Table 6.0: APH Historical Approved per Capita Rates, 2018 – 2024 

 
When reviewing the cost of public health per capital, alongside the work by public health and projected 
work to recover from the pandemic and support community health and wellbeing, the 21 municipalities 
within Algoma continue to receive exceptional value for local public health programs and 
services. 

Table 7.0 demonstrates scenarios based on the percentage increase to the levy applied by the Board of 
Health, an estimated number of FTEs the applied increase would represent (based on an organization-
wide average cost including benefits) and the resulting change to the funded portion of cost-shared 
programs, which the contributing municipalities would be responsible for.27 

The final scenario provided (38.61% increase in municipal levy) is presented to illustrate the amount of 
municipal contribution that would be required to eliminate the need for workforce reduction initiatives as 
described above and is estimated net of budgeted non-labour related efficiencies. 

The budgeted municipal levy increase for 2024 of 6% is equivalent to 2.49 FTE.  

Table 7.0: Scenarios Based on the Percentage Increase to the Levy Applied and Number of FTE 
the Increase Represents27  

Levy Applied % Increase $ Increase 
Estimated # of FTE  
(Based on Average 

Cost of $101k) 
Cost Share % 

 $    4,294,376.00  2.51%  $       105,160.00  1.04 30.0% 
 $    4,356,785.00  4.00%  $       167,569.00  1.66 30.3% 

 $    4,398,677.00  5.00%  $       209,461.00  2.07 30.5% 
 $    4,440,569.00  6.00% 

(Budgeted) 
 $       251,353.00  2.49 30.7% 

 $    4,503,407.00  7.5%  $       314,191.00  3.11 31.00% 

 $    4,608,138.00  10.00%  $       418,922.00  4.15 31.50% 

Increase to the levy will reduce impacts of financial pressures to the local public health workforce, in 
addition to measures already implemented by the Executive team described above, and preserve health 

 
27 Note: Data in Table 7.0 includes estimates at the time of writing and are subject to change.  

Year Approved Rate

2018 $33.63
2019 $33.80
2020 $34.18
2021 $36.57
2022 $40.23
2023 $40.44
2024  42.87 (Budgeted)

Page 46 of 116

Page 43 of 161



 

19 
 

human resource capacity for the delivery of priority programming to promote and protect community 
health and advance health equity in Algoma. 

7.2 Expenditures 
As compared to the 2023 forecast, the 1.2% overall budget decrease is comprised of the following 
salary, benefit, and operating expense changes.  

7.2.1 Salary and Benefit Changes 
The 2024 expenditure comparisons with 2023 were made using the 2023 forecasted values (see Table 
1.0). As compared with 2023, the salary and benefit budget lines reflect a decrease of 2.3% and an 
increase of 6.4%, respectively:  

• Salary: As compared to 2023, salaries are budgeted at a decrease of $237,491 or 2.3%. The 
decrease represents temporary staffing that was identified in the 2023 operating budget for COVID-
19 response and immunization that is not anticipated to be needed in 2024, as well as additional 
workforce reduction as outlined in report Section 2.2.6 Workforce Reduction Planning.  

Some savings associated with workforce reduction planning initiatives are not expected to be 
realized until post-2024 based on union and employment contract requirements such as salary and 
benefit continuance, vacation time payouts, etc. However, these scenarios are expected to support 
the longer-term financial health of APH as sub-inflationary provincial funding increases are expected 
to be experienced for the foreseeable future from 2024-2026. 

The salary amount includes annual increases as required/anticipated under union collective 
agreements, staff movement along salary grids, and an assumed 2% vacancy factor. 

• Benefits: As compared to 2023, benefits are budgeted at an increase of $161,446 or 6.4%. 
Historical utilization is factored heavily in the projection of the rates, in addition to expected market 
fluctuations. There are several factors driving an expected increase to the cost of benefits, despite a 
reduced workforce. Factors include, but are not limited to: 

o APH’s employee benefits with regards to life and long-term disability are due for renewal in 
August 2024. Health benefits are reviewed annually for utilization, any potential enhanced 
offerings, and current fee guides by providers. 

o Increased rates – To date in 2023, APH’s benefits provider has identified substantial 
increases, particularly in the Ontario Dental Fee Guide (quoting they are arguably the highest 
increases they have experienced in 26 years). As forecasted by our provider, we can expect 
to continue to experience these pressures into 2024, with an 8.5% additional increase 
anticipated for this fee guide. APH’s premium rates have also increased as a result of union 
bargaining enhancements (e.g., increasing vision and smoking cessation coverage).  

o Increased utilization – Upon review of first and second-quarter reports provided by our health 
benefits provider, APH’s utilization rates have increased approximately 7% over 2023, with 
the bulk of the variance being driven by drug and dental claims. 

o When other public health units across Ontario were surveyed regarding their expectations for 
forecasted increases for benefits, responses varied across providers and packages. 
However, responses supported a resounding expectation of a double-digit increase in 2024 
(at minimum), with some quoting up to a staggering 56% percent increase year over year 
based on market reviews provided by their providers. APH has budgeted an estimated 36% 
increase in non-statutory benefits as compared to the 2023 budget.  

7.2.2 Operating Expenditure Changes 
As compared with the restated 2023 budget or 2023 forecast, the 2024 recommended budget reflects 
an overall decrease of 1.2% ($250,194).  

Page 47 of 116

Page 44 of 161



 

20 
 

Operating expenditures have been budgeted by the Executive Team with consideration of both historical 
pre/post-pandemic and pandemic spend levels, current inflationary projections, and with the assumption 
that regular program activities will continue recovering in 2024 concentrating on prioritized population 
health recovery initiatives.   

Expenditure lines with significant changes are detailed below, following the order of appearance in the 
budget summary (Table 1.0): 

• Travel: The increase in travel is related to the expectation that as regular mandatory programming 
continues to be restored, so will the need to travel throughout the Algoma district to ensure equitable 
access to services.   

• Program expenses: Program expenses for 2023 are budgeted at a 16.3% decrease from 2023. 
Although APH is not anticipating material savings related to general program materials and supplies, 
the Executive Team has made the strategic decision to concentrate 100% funding for the OSDCP 
on staffing (versus historically being more evenly weighted between staffing and externally provided 
professional services).  

Program expenses include general program materials and supplies, purchased services, and 
professional fees (e.g., physician and/or denture service fees). 

• Office: The projected decrease in office expenses in 2024 assumes that we will continue to 
experience savings related to general office supplies which is driven by the virtual/electronic 
efficiencies implemented as necessary throughout the pandemic.  

• Telecommunications: The decrease in telecommunications expenses is driven by efficiencies to be 
introduced with migration to a new phone system, migration to a Microsoft 365 platform, as well as 
the rightsizing of our phone line and cell phone requirements post-pandemic. 

• Program promotion: The decrease in program promotion is driven by reduced budgeted media 
spend as associated with COVID-19 response and immunization programming, reduced anticipated 
recruitment costs, and reduced professional development spend based on both reduced staff levels 
and initiatives associated with workforce recovery nearing or coming to completion in 2023.  

• Facilities Leases: The increase in facilities leases is driven by contracted renewal rates for each of 
our district offices.  

• Building maintenance: The increase in building maintenance is driven by significantly increased 
anticipated cost associated with utilities and service contracts for our four offices, which are currently 
estimated to increase 26% and 9% respectively over the budgeted rate for 2023.  

• Fees and insurance: The increase in fees and insurance is driven by aggressive increases to 
APH’s general liability, property, and cyber-risk coverage (estimated at 20% for 2024).   

8. Capital Budget  

In accordance with APH’s 2018-2030 Capital Asset Funding Plan (see Appendix B), the 2024 capital 
budget was forecasted to include $25,000 for computer replacements, $7,000 for a vaccine refrigerator, 
$44,100 for pavement and curbing upgrades/maintenance, and $122,000 for HVAC upgrades/ 
maintenance. 

At this point in time and based on current inventories, computer and vaccine refrigerator replacements 
are not considered necessary.  

Instead, the Executive Team is recommending a 2024 capital budget estimated at $60,000, which 
includes the following expenditures:  

• An estimated $25,000 for asphalt maintenance (line painting and crack filling) at 294 Willow Avenue, 
Sault Ste. Marie. This maintenance is overdue and considered to be a health and safety concern for 
safely controlling traffic through our parking lot. Furthermore, should the proper maintenance of the 

Page 48 of 116

Page 45 of 161



 

21 
 

asphalt be foregone, it is estimated that completing a more significant restoration in the future could 
be substantially more costly. 

• An estimated $35,000 for work required to be completed to provide spray foam insulation and 
fireproof intumescent coating to the structural beams housed on the second and third floors of 294 
Willow Avenue, Sault Ste. Marie. This is maintenance that is required and caused by repeat water 
damage to our suspended ceilings. This work has been assessed, assigned the above-mentioned 
corrective action, and quoted as noted.  

9. Conclusions 

The recommended 2024 budget for public health programs and services is $17,242,178, representing a 
decrease of $205,194 under 2023 anticipated funding. At a 1.2% decrease over previous, the 
recommended budget is considered the minimum required to sustain the delivery of core public health 
programs and services in health protection and promotion based on prioritized community needs in 
Algoma and routinize COVID-19 response and immunization into core infectious disease and 
immunization programming, as mandated by the OPHS and required to support health for all.   
 

 

Page 49 of 116

Page 46 of 161



 

22 
 

Appendix A   
Annual Municipal Levy Comparison, 2018 to Proposed 2024 

 

Municipal Levy Historical Analysis POP 2016 
Census 

2020 
Approved 
Rate (after 
Refund) ($)

2020 
Approved 
Levy (after 
Refund) ($)

2021 
Approved 
Rate ($)

2021 
Approved 
Levy ($)

2022 
Approved 
Rate ($)

2022 
Approved 
Levy ($)

POP 2021 
Census*

2023 
Approved 
Rate ($)

2023 
Approved 
Levy ($)

2024 
Proposed 
Rate ($)

2024 
Proposed 
Levy ($) 

Appointment 
of Costs (%)

Proposed 
Net 

Change 
($)

APH Levy as a 
Percentage of 
Municipality 
Revenue (%)

CITIES
 
Sault Ste. Marie 73,368      34.18 2,507,836   36.57 2,683,386     40.23         2,951,725    72,051        40.44         2,913,655   42.87         3,088,475  69.55% 174,819    1.13%
Elliot Lake 10,741      34.18 367,146     36.57 392,852       40.23         432,137      11,372        40.44         459,870      42.87         487,462     10.98% 27,592      1.28%

TOWNS
 
Blind River 3,472       34.18 118,679     36.57 126,986       40.23         139,685      3,422          40.44         138,382      42.87         146,684     3.30% 8,303       0.83%
Bruce Mines 582          34.18 19,894       36.57 21,286         40.23         23,415        582             40.44         23,535        42.87         24,947       0.56% 1,412       1.03%
Thessalon 1,286       34.18 43,958       36.57 47,034         40.23         51,737        1,260          40.44         50,953        42.87         54,010       1.22% 3,057       1.19%

VILLAGES/MUNICIPALITY
 
Hilton Beach 171          34.18 5,845         36.57 6,254           40.23         6,879          198             40.44         8,007         42.87         8,487        0.19% 480          0.54%
Huron Shores 1,664       34.18 56,878       36.57 60,859         40.23         66,945        1,860          40.44         75,216        42.87         79,729       1.80% 4,513       1.09%

TOWNSHIPS
 
Dubreuilville 613          34.18 20,953       36.57 22,420         40.23         24,662        576             40.44         23,293        42.87         24,690       0.56% 1,398       0.56%
Jocelyn 313          34.18 10,699       36.57 11,448         40.23         12,593        314             40.44         12,698        42.87         13,460       0.30% 762          0.84%
Johnson 751          34.18 25,670       36.57 27,467         40.23         30,214        749             40.44         30,289        42.87         32,106       0.72% 1,817       0.83%
Hilton 307          34.18 10,494       36.57 11,228         40.23         12,351        382             40.44         15,448        42.87         16,374       0.37% 927          0.88%
Laird 1,047       34.18 35,788       36.57 38,293         40.23         42,122        1,121          40.44         45,332        42.87         48,052       1.08% 2,720       1.33%
MacDonald, Meredith and Aberdeen Add'l 1,609       34.18 54,998       36.57 58,848         40.23         64,733        1,513          40.44         61,184        42.87         64,855       1.46% 3,671       1.44%
Wawa (formerly Michipicoten) 2,905       34.18 99,298       36.57 106,247       40.23         116,872      2,705          40.44         109,387      42.87         115,950     2.61% 6,563       0.71%
The North Shore 497          34.18 16,988       36.57 18,177         40.23         19,995        531             40.44         21,473        42.87         22,761       0.51% 1,288       0.90%
Plummer Add'l 660          34.18 22,560       36.57 24,139         40.23         26,553        757             40.44         30,612        42.87         32,449       0.73% 1,837       1.07%
Prince 1,010       34.18 34,524       36.57 36,940         40.23         40,634        975             40.44         39,428        42.87         41,793       0.94% 2,366       1.52%
St. Joseph 1,240       34.18 42,385       36.57 45,352         40.23         49,887        1,426          40.44         57,666        42.87         61,126       1.38% 3,460       0.95%
Spanish 712          34.18 24,337       36.57 26,041         40.23         28,645        670             40.44         27,094        42.87         28,720       0.65% 1,626       0.98%
Tarbutt 534          34.18 18,253       36.57 19,531         40.23         21,484        573             40.44         23,171        42.87         24,562       0.55% 1,390       1.22%
White River 645          34.18 22,047       36.57 23,590         40.23         25,949        557             40.44         22,524        42.87         23,876       0.54% 1,351       0.57%

Total 104,127 3,559,232 3,808,378     4,189,216    103,594      4,189,216   4,440,569  100.00% 251,353    
YOY % Increase 1.12% 7.00% 10.00% 0.00% 6.00%
Note: 
* Statistics Canada. Census profile, 2021 census of population [Internet]. 2023 Mar 8 [cited 2023 Nov 3]. Available from: https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/dp-pd/prof/search-recherche/results-resultats.cfm?Lang=E

Page 50 of 116

Page 47 of 161



 

23 
 

Appendix B 
2018-2030 APH Capital Asset Funding Plan 

 

See subsequent document.  

 

 

 

 
 

Page 51 of 116

Page 48 of 161



Appendix H

Page 52 of 116

Page 49 of 161



Page 53 of 116

Page 50 of 161



Page 54 of 116

Page 51 of 161



Page 55 of 116

Page 52 of 161



Page 56 of 116

Page 53 of 161



Page 57 of 116

Page 54 of 161



Page 58 of 116

Page 55 of 161



Page 59 of 116

Page 56 of 161



  

 
 
October 27, 2023 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
Honourable Chrystia Freeland 
Deputy Prime Minister and Ministry of Finance  
 
Honourable Jenna Sudds  
Ministry of Families, Children and Social Development  
 
Honourable Lawrence MacAulay  
Ministry of Agriculture and Agri-Food  
 
Honourable Jean-Yves Duclos  
Ministry of Public Services and Procurement  
 
Dear Federal Ministers Freeland, Sudds, MacAulay, and Duclos: 

 
Re: Support for a Funded Healthy School Food Program in Budget 

2024 (Federal) 
 
At its meeting on October 19, 2023, the Board of Health for Public Health 
Sudbury & Districts carried the following resolution #61-23: 
 

WHEREAS a universal publicly funded student nutrition program can 
positively impact students’ nourishment, health and well-being, behaviours 
and attitudes, school connectedness, and academic success; and 

WHEREAS the current provincial student nutrition program strives to offer 
a breakfast, snack, and/or lunch to students each school day, but not all 
schools have adequate financial and human resources to offer them; and 

WHEREAS the annual monitoring of food affordability in Sudbury and 
districts demonstrates that some families may struggle to purchase food, 
and a universal fully-funded student nutrition program can help to ensure 
no child is left out of the program due to their family’s ability to pay; and 

WHEREAS the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts 
passed motion 02-20 supporting a universal publicly funded healthy school 
food program; and 

WHEREAS although the Ontario government recently announced an 
additional $5 million this year in the provincial Student Nutrition Program 
and the First Nations Student Nutrition Program, more support is needed to 

Page 60 of 116

Page 57 of 161

https://www.phsd.ca/about/board-health/motions-approved-sudbury-district-board-health/fully-funded-universal-healthy-school-food-program-motion-02-20/


Letter to Federal Ministers Freeland, Sudds, MacAulay, and Duclos 
Re:  Support for a Funded Healthy School Food Program in Budget 2024 
October 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 
  

ensure a fully-funded universal student nutrition program; and 

WHEREAS the federal government announced its commitment to work toward the 
creation of a National School Food Policy to help Canadian communities access 
healthy food in the Food Policy for Canada; and 

WHEREAS the Ontario Public Health Standards requires boards of health to support 
and participate with other partners in advancing school food policy and programming 
using population health assessment and surveillance, policy development; and 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health for Public Health 
Sudbury & Districts support the recommendations submitted by the Coalition for 
Healthy School Food to the Government of Canada as part of advance consultations 
for Budget 2024: 

Allocate $1 billion over five years and collaborate with provinces, territories, and 
Indigenous partners to provide them with an initial $200 million as soon as possible 
to fund existing school food programs; and 

Create a separate School Food Infrastructure Fund grants program of, at minimum, 
$50 million; and  

Negotiate independent School Food Policy agreements with First Nation, Inuit and 
Métis leadership to ensure long-term and sustainable funding for Indigenous school 
nutritious meal programs; and  

THAT the Board calls on the Federal Minister of Families, Children and Social 
Development for investment in healthy school food in Budget 2024, as presented in 
the House of Commons’ online e-4586 (Food and drink); and 

FURTHER THAT The Board share this motion with relevant stakeholders, including 
Ontario Boards of Health and the Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
(alPHa). 

Currently, Canada is the only G7 country without a national school food program in 
place. In Ontario, the current student nutrition program faces inconsistent year-to-year 
funding, posing barriers to stability and sustainability and impacting full implementation 
of the program, such that all students can benefit from proper nourishment. The 
patchwork of funding sources compromises the quantity and quality of food served, and 
the availability of adequate infrastructure and human resources to offer a student 
nutrition program where all children are able to benefit from. 
 
In the Food Policy for Canada, the Government of Canada announced the intention to 
“engage with provinces, territories, and key stakeholder groups to work toward the 
creation of the National School Food Program”i. Despite this intention, there was no 
financial commitment made to establish a National School Food Program in the 2023 
federal budget. 
 

Page 61 of 116

Page 58 of 161

https://agriculture.canada.ca/sites/default/files/legacy/pack/pdf/fpc_20190614-en.pdf
https://www2.foodsecurecanada.org/civicrm/mailing/url?u=26228&qid=2185819
https://petitions.ourcommons.ca/en/Petition/Details?Petition=e-4586
https://agriculture.canada.ca/en/department/initiatives/food-policy/food-policy-canada


Letter to Federal Ministers Freeland, Sudds, MacAulay, and Duclos 
Re:  Support for a Funded Healthy School Food Program in Budget 2024 
October 27, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 
  
The Board of Health is pleased to join many leaders from across Canada in supporting a 
publicly funded universal school food program model that can positively impact student’s 
nourishment, health and wellbeing, behaviours and attitudes, school connectedness, 
and academic success. The proposed universal program model with leadership by 
Canada, and Ontario’s Ministries would enable all students to have the equal opportunity 
to eat healthy meals at school everyday, and that no child is left out due to their family’s 
ability to pay.  
 
Thank you for your attention on this important issue. Given the impact of nutrition related 
children’s health and wellbeing, we trust you will advance this work quickly and so that 
no child is left out.   
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 
cc: Honourable Michael Parsa, Minister of Children, Community and Social Services 

Honourable Stephen Lecce, Minister of Education 
Honourable Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier of Ontario, Minister of Health  
Jamie West, Local Member of Provincial Parliament, Sudbury 
France Gélinas, Local Member of Provincial Parliament, Nickel Belt 
Michael Mantha, Local Member of Provincial Parliament, Algoma-Manitoulin-
Kapuskasing 
Viviane Lapointe, Local Member of Parliament, Sudbury 
Marc Serré, Local Member of Parliament, Nickel Belt 
Carol Hughes, Local Member of Parliament, Algoma-Manitoulin-Kapuskasing 
Bruce Bourget, Director of Education, Rainbow District School Board 
Danny Viotto, Director of Education, Huron Superior Catholic District School 
Board 
Joanne Bénard, Director of Education, Sudbury Catholic District School Board 
Lesleigh Dye, Director of Education, District School Board Ontario North East 
Lucia Reece, Director of Education, Algoma District School Board 
Paul Henry, Directeur de l’éducation, Conseil scolaire catholique Nouvelon 
Sébastien Fontaine, Directeur de l’éducation, Conseil scolaire public du Grand 
Nord de l’Ontario 
Sylvie Petroski, Directrice de l’éducation, Conseil scolaire catholique de district 
des Grandes Rivières 
Debbie Field, Coalition for Healthy School Food 
Carol Dodge, Executive Director, Better Beginnings Better Futures 
Ontario Boards of Health 
 

Page 62 of 116

Page 59 of 161



Letter to Federal Ministers Freeland, Sudds, MacAulay, and Duclos 
Re:  Support for a Funded Healthy School Food Program in Budget 2024 
October 27, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 
  

 
i Government of Canada. (2020, November 17). The Food Policy for Canada. 
https://agriculture.canada.ca/en/department/initiatives/food-policy/food-policy-canada  

Page 63 of 116

Page 60 of 161

https://agriculture.canada.ca/en/department/initiatives/food-policy/food-policy-canada


  

 
 
October 27, 2023 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
 
The Honourable Sylvia Jones 
Minister of Health 
 
The Honourable Michael Tibollo 
Associate Minister of Mental Health and Addictions 
 
Dear Premier Ford and Provincial Ministers Jones and Tibollo: 

 
Re: Public Health Strengthening and Chronic Disease Prevention 
 
On behalf of the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts, please accept 
this correspondence highlighting our commitment to health promotion and chronic 
disease prevention.   
 
At its meeting on October 19, 2023, the Board of Health carried the following 
resolution #60-23: 

 
 WHEREAS the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts is 
committed to ensuring it addresses the public health needs and health equity 
in its catchment area, as aligned with board of health requirements under the 
Health Protection and Promotion Act and Ontario Public Health Standards; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS Health Promotion Ontario’s White Paper on the Value of Local 
Health Promotion in Ontario recommends strong and sustained investment in 
local health promotion by public health units to ensure that health promotion 
is prioritized on an ongoing basis; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Board recognizes that there are opportunities for system 
improvements as part of the review of board roles and responsibilities 
announced under the government’s Public Health Strengthening initiative, 
including an assessment of its role in chronic disease prevention though health 
promotion interventions; and

Page 64 of 116

Page 61 of 161



Letter to Premier Ford and Provincial Ministers Jones and Tibollo 
Re:  Public Health Strengthening and Chronic Disease Prevention 
October 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 WHEREAS chronic diseases are mostly preventable, are the cause of 75% of deaths in 
Ontario, and incur $10.5 billion in direct health care costs in the province; and 
 
 WHEREAS as the scope and intensity of infectious disease risks increase in the context of 
finite resources, there is a risk of under-resourcing public health actions that work on 
longer horizon chronic disease prevention; 
 
 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT in the context of the Public Health Strengthening roles 
and responsibilities deliberations, the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & 
Districts urges all health system actors to remain committed to maintaining appropriate 
investments in health promotion and chronic disease prevention, while ensuring health 
risks associated with its health protection work are managed; 
 
 AND FURTHER THAT the Board request that the Chief Medical Officer of Health ensure 
proactive local engagement in the sector-driven review of the Ontario Public Health 
Standards. 

 
Chronic diseases account for a substantial burden on the health of Ontarians and the health care 
system. They are the leading cause of death in Ontario, and they disproportionately impact 
populations who are socioeconomically disadvantaged, intensifying inequities. Chronic diseases 
are expensive to treat but they are largely preventable. Health promotion and chronic disease 
prevention work is critical to reducing the health and economic burden of chronic diseases.  
 
The Board of Health respectfully urges the Provincial Government to ensure all health system 
actors, including local Public Health, are supported to invest in coordinated action to promote 
health and reduce the burden of chronic diseases, affecting so many Ontarians.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 
cc: Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 

Heather Schramm, Acting Director, Health Promotion and Prevention Policy and 
Programs Branch, Ministry of Health 
Susan Stewart, Chair, Health Promotion Ontario Executive Committee 
Michael Sherar, President and Chief Executive Officer, Public Health Ontario 
Matthew Anderson, President and Chief Executive Officer, Ontario Health 
Brian Ktytor, Chief Regional Officer, Ontario Health North East & North West 
France Gélinas, Member of Provincial Parliament, Nickel Belt 
Jamie West, Member of Provincial Parliament, Sudbury 
Michael Mantha, Member of Provincial Parliament, Algoma-Manitoulin-Kapuskasing 
All Ontario Boards of Health 

Page 65 of 116

Page 62 of 161



�����������	
������
���������������������������������� !��"�#$��%&�'$()$ *����'$()$ *��"��$+,�-���#$��%&�.���/,����$ 0,/$�1�((,%%$$*�����$-,� ��2)�,/�#$��%&�'�-�+$ *3�0$()$ �456�78753�0$()$ �7875�9-"�� $�:;�����<=
������
���������>��<�
�?@
A��	�	�����
<<����=��B������
�������������<����C���
������C��=��D�<��E��C�
��
�����C�	����F���D���
����F�
�?@
�
C��E�����F�C�����<��=��C�F�
�=��E����G����������
��
�<�
���G��DG�$�!$ �%���$�!$ �H���'$**�+$�" �(����#�I*�� $*,!$-%�H�3�0$()$ �7875�
J�C�D��K��D�����=�=�C
�����������C
��<����C���
������C��������D���������<�<��
�������
�����B�L��
��
��F�MN	���	���=������M�����>��B�
�����
������	�	�����=���E��
�=

G�M�
	�<���=��B�
�?@
N����
=�����<�������������<����C���
�����
���	G�O��
CC�	<�����	�C���
����>��D���D������
��<����C���
������
=���G�M��
��������
�>�����PL@�Q�C����F�RLSL@�Q�C�����
�=�TBB���
���	�	�����B���
�����
�����
�=�G

Page 66 of 116

Page 63 of 161



����������	��
���
��
�
����������
�
����
���	���������������
��
�
���	���
�����������
��

���	������������

��������
���
�	�����
���
����
���������

�
�������
����	��
��
��������
�
�	��������������������
����
���������
��


�����
���������������
�����

�����
����
�

�
�������
���	
������
��������
�
����
����
�������������
��������������
��������
������
������
� ��
��!
	����������
������
�������	����
���
��
���
���	
�
������	������
�"

������������!�����������

�������������#
���
�������������

�������
��
��
�
����������	��
��������
����

��������������������
���������
�����
��$�����	����
�������
��������������%���������
������
������!

����
����	�#���
���
�������������
�&��
��
��''(')��'*'+�����
�����������������
	�
����
�������������������
�������������
������
����	��
�
���������������
���������������
�����
�
�
����	������	
�	�
��

���
���������������
��
�
��,
��
�������
���
�
��������	��
���
���
�

	����


�
�������
�

�������


�����������
	������������	��
���������
�
��
�����������������
�������
��������
�-���
�
���������������
�.�����/����������������������
��������	���
�0�
�
������������
�����-����������
����
�
���
�
�����������������������

��������
�
�����������
�

����������
��1���	
�����
������������������


�2�1���3��
�����
���	��������.
�
�������
�����
��������


�����


��������
�����
������
	�
���	�
��
����
����������������
������
�	
�
����������������#
���
���
�

	����


���
����
�

����	������
��$����

�������


	������������
�
�

	����
�����������������#���	�!
������
�����.�������
��
���
����

���		�������������#�������
��
�������	�#
���


��

����

������
��������
�
��
��.���������
����
���������
���
����
������������������	���


����
���	�����
�����
��

���������
������
��
�
��$�	����
������
�����
������
�������
���	��
��
�
������$�����������1�
����
����
������4�
�����
�
�
��
����������������
����
��
������������������
��
�
�����	��

�������
�

���������

��
���

�

��
�
��
����	���
����

���
�
��
���
	������
���������������
�����
�
�
�������������%��������$����
����


�����������������
�������%���������
������	�����
�������������
�������#���
�������
�����
����%
�������5)(56������	���
�������"3!���	� ���
�
��
��
������������
������7��
�8(9�������������������0:
�����
�.��
������/��
����,�����������
����������
��������������
����������������������


�
�
��
�����
�
����.��� ����

�3��	�
���������

�	
���;<=>?@�ABCD�?E@�FGHGI?BJ�CA�K@>L?EM�N?B@HO?E@HGHO�PQRLGS�K@>L?E
Page 67 of 116

Page 64 of 161



�����������	��
�����������
�������������	������
�������������
���
�������������
�	��
	�
����
����
������������������
���
��
������������	��������
�
	������	���������������
��������������� �!���
���	"�
��������������
���������
����	���
�	��	����#
��
���������
�����	
��
�����������	��	�
���
������	���
�
������������	�����	��
����
��������
��$�����
��
��%�� ���	
�
����
������	&���� ����
�'(')&�
����	"������
����	����
�
��������
���	������
�*���	���
���
�
	��	�%������	�������
����� �&�����������
���&���
�
�����	�
��������������
�����
	��	�����
��
����
	��
����
���������������
�&����
��
�	��
��������	��
���+�,��������������	������
�����	�������
����
��	����
�����
���	������������
���
��
��
���'������	�
����"	���
��������������	������ ���)����	"�
�����
����&����
�����������
����
	���� ������������������	�����
�
	������"	�"�
����
�������	����
�
����	������"�����
��
�����������
�"����� ���-��
����	�����
���&�
��������
���������
���
�
�
���������������������	�
�
����
���
	���� ����
�.	��
��	������
��
	�������
�
������	�������������
&���
�����	�
���	�	����
�"��	����
��	����� ����
����
�
����"	���
���������������������������	�%������
��
��� ��	���
����������
��������������	������
��
	�����
�������
���������������
���������	����������� ��
	����������
���	�����	�����
������
����	��
���	����
�	��������
����-�
����	�����
�/����	��	����	�����
�������������
��������������
����������
���	������ 

�
�	�������	���
�	��	��
������������	�	������������	����	�����������
�������������	�	������������������
�����
����
�����������#������!��������������
���
��
���'('0� ���������"�����������
�.�
��
���������	��
�����
�����������1��������'(')&���
�����������	�	�������������������
������������'('0��-��
����	��������%�&�
��������
�����������	���	"�
����
�
���	��
���2	������
�2���	�������
������
�/��
�����	�%�
������	��
����
����
������������������
���
��
�����������������	�
�����
	���	"�
�����	���
�	������
����	�����"����������
�������	�%���
��%����
�%��	�
���������
����
����������	��
�����������
�������������	������
����
�
��� ��	���
�	��	������������
����	����
���	�� ��!�34567�869�:;�<=>4?:=<�@;<�:A=�67BC6�DEDF�3677�G9HI;?4JHK�G=L:4;5�M==:45>?K�658�N;<O?A;I?�4?�:A4?�P==OQ�
Page 68 of 116

Page 65 of 161



��������	�
����
�����������
�������	�����������		�����
�����������
��������������
��
����
��������
���
���� 
!��"���#$%�&'()�*+*,-�.(//�012/(34�-'*�56(-(50/�67/*8�+0/9*8�0,:�;*,*3(-�73�<,-06(7=)�/750/�29;/(5�'*0/-'�)4)-*1>�?*@()-60-(7,�()�ABCC�2/9)�DE&�0,:�479�50,�6*@()-*6�'*6*>�&'*�:603-�267@601�50,�;*�055*))*:�;4�5/(5F(,@�'*6*>G7(,�9)�376�7,/(,*�2/*,064�)*))(7,)�.(-'�29;/(5�'*0/-'�/*0:*6)�(,�-'*�176,(,@�37//7.*:�;4�-'*�H<D�E*5-(7,�0,:�I<J<D�E*5-(7,�1**-(,@)�(,�-'*�03-*6,77,>K--*,:**)�06*�(,+(-*:8�0-�,7�0::(-(7,0/�57)-8�-7�206-(5(20-*�(,�.76F)'72)�50//*:L�D7.�-7�M)*�0�D910,�?(@'-)�H0)*:�N601*.76F�(,�-'*�O76F2/05*�3671�PQR�2>1>�7,�S7+*1;*6�TT�0,:�-'*�U1276-0,5*�73�?()F�I7119,(50-(7,�(,�0�I'0,@(,@�O76/:�3671�PQR�2>1>�7,�S7+*1;*6�TB>��	������
����"
���V
����
���V�		�"����	
�!���W

����
�����	
��������
�����
��V�		�"��������	
�����
�����V
����
��
����X�&'()�@0-'*6(,@�267+(:*)�0�9,(Y9*�72276-9,(-4�-7�57,,*5-�.(-'�29;/(5�'*0/-'�/*0:*6)�3671�0//�576,*6)�73�-'*�267+(,5*>�&7@*-'*68�.*�.(//�:*/+*�(,-7�)'06*:�7;)-05/*)�0,:�)-6*,@-'*,�-'*�39-96*�73�29;/(5�'*0/-'>�Z[2*5-�-7�@0(,�055*))�-7�(,+0/90;/*�-77/)�0,:�6*)7965*)�-'0-�.(//�*127.*6�/750/�29;/(5�'*0/-'�0,:�-'*(6�57119,(-(*)>�<96�/(,*92�73�)2*0F*6)�376�-'*�E4127)(918�-0F(,@�2/05*�7,�S7+*1;*6�TR-'8�(,5/9:*)L�\6>�I'06/*)�]06:,*6�̂_6*)(:*,-8�0/_D0̀8�\6>�a(*60,�J776*�̂I'(*3�J*:(50/�<33(5*6�73�D*0/-'̀8�I4,-'(0�E->�G7',�̂IZ<8�E79-'.*)-*6,�_9;/(5�D*0/-'̀8�J06(0�Eb,5'*cQa*0,*�_̂6(,5(20/�I7,)9/-0,-8�I*,-6*�376�<6@0,(c0-(7,0/�Z33*5-(+*,*))̀8�G7',�K//*,�̂_06-,*68�K//*,�d�J0/*F�ee_̀8�\6>�?7;*6-�a4/*�0,:�E-*+*,�?*;*//0-7�̂0/_D0�<SIK�I712/(0,5*�O76F(,@�]6792̀8�J(5'0*/�E'*6068�I7//**,�]*(@*68�\6>�G*))(50�D72F(,)8�\6>�E01(6�_0-*/8�0,:�\6>�&01060�O0//(,@-7,�̂_9;/(5�D*0/-'�<,-06(7̀>�K::(-(7,0//48�1*1;*6)�73�\6>�a(*60,�J776*=)�)-033�.(//�;*�.(-'�'(1�.'(/*�'*�()�26*)*,-(,@�(,5/9:(,@�Z/(c0;*-'�O0/F*68�H6*,-�N**,*48�I7//**,�a(*/8�0,:�I067/�J0>�&'*4�.(//�;*�0+0(/0;/*�-7�0))()-�.(-'�-'*�Y9*)-(7,�0,:�0,).*6�)*))(7,�0,:�*,)96*�-'*�26*)*,-0-(7,�@7*)�)177-'/4�7+*60//>��&'*�E*5-(7,�1**-(,@)�06*�0/)7�-0F(,@�2/05*�-'0-�03-*6,77,�0,:�479�50,�3(,:�-'*�26*/(1(,064�0@*,:0�376�-'*�H706:)�73�D*0/-'�E*5-(7,�-'679@'�-'()�/(,F>�&'*�H<D�E*5-(7,�1**-(,@�3*0-96*)�I'0(6�I061*,�J5]6*@76�0,:�0/_D0=)�Z[*59-(+*�\(6*5-768�e76*--0�?40,>�<-'*6�)2*0F*6)�(,5/9:*�U0,�I911(,)8�\(6*5-76�̂<,-06(7�D*0/-'�&*01)�<̂D&)̀�E-60-*@48�<,-06(7�D*0/-'̀8�e(,:)04�G7,*)8�J(5'0*/�G05*F8�0,:�\0,(*/0�E20@,97/7�̂K))75(0-(7,�73�J9,(5(20/(-(*)�73�<,-06(7̀8�G01*)�e*S7964�̂_6(,5(20/8�
Page 69 of 116

Page 66 of 161



���������	
���
	������	���������������	���
��	����������	��������	����������������	����� �����	�	�����!�"##���	����	���	����
����$�����	����������%&'�
�������$������!������&�&'�
�������$�������	����	�
�����������	����	��	��	�����	��!�	��'	�
�����	��������������	���	����#��������	�����	���$����	�����#����������	������	������������(	���
�$�����$!�"������	�����������	������������)�!���	�����*	������#���$����	���������� ���!�(���#����������	�������������������#������
�$�����$������	$��	���%&'�
���������������	����	!�+,-.�����
��	����/�%�����	 �������	������������
������!�0����	�� ��
����$�����!
123

Page 70 of 116

Page 67 of 161



Page 71 of 116

Page 68 of 161



�����������	��
�	��
�������	������	��������������������	���
Page 72 of 116

Page 69 of 161



��������	
�����

���������������
�
�
������������

�������
������� !"�#$%��&!�'&(!)�*+ ,(��-!.,�&��))(�!"��)�'.�./.�"!,!.0!/�&!"�1!2�"������&!�3�.�!��)�*+ ,(��-!.,�&�(��'.�./.�4$4#5�'"!.�(�6��&!�'��/(�(��0�)�"�1!0(,(!���'�77+�(�(!05�8�*+ ,(��-!.,�&�822"�.�&����97!"6!��(!0:�;&!�"!2�"��2"�2�0!0�.�&!.,�&�2"�7��(���.22"�.�&����!7!"6!��<�7.�.6!7!���=(�&(��=&(�&�2+ ,(��&!.,�&��.��=�">�=(�&�2."��!"0�(��/())!"!���0!���"0���� +(,/�&!.,�&(!"�.�/�7�"!�"!0(,(!�����77+�(�(!0%�=(�&�.�0�"��6�)��+0����!?+(�<%� <�,.<(�6��&!�)�+�/.�(��0���� !��!"�2"!@!��%�=(�&0�.�/%�.�/�"!��@!"�)"�7�!7!"6!��(!0:�;&!�"!2�"������,+/!0�=(�&�.��&.2�!"�!��(�,!/�A;&!�B.<�C�"=."/D%�=&(�&��+�,(�!0��.�6( ,!�.��(��0���� "(�6�&!.,�&�2"�7��(���(����!7!"6!��<�7.�.6!7!���2�,(�(!0�.�/�2".��(�!:;&!�'*-��3�.�!7!����.�� !�"!./�&!"!:3+77."<�*"!0!��.�(���3,(/!��.�� !�@(!=!/�&!"!:*EC��)��&!�1!2�"���.�� !�/�=�,�./!/�&!"!:�
������
����������F
����

���


	��
���G������������H����I��
��J������

��KJ����������L����I���

�J�
��
*."�(�(2.�(���(0��&"�+6&�.����,(�!�0+"@!<:�;&!�M.�(��.,�'�,,. �".�(�6�'!��"!�)�"�E!�!"7(�.��0��)�-!.,�&N0�!�@("��7!��.,�0�.�0�&.@!�(�)�"7!/�&�=��&!<�+0!��&!("�!�!"6<%��(7!%�.�/�"!0�+"�!0����"!02��/����>��=,!/6!%� +(,/��!�=�">0%�.�/��))!"�

Page 73 of 116

Page 70 of 161



���������	���
��	��
���	�������
������������
����	������������������
������	������������������������� !��"#$$�%&�'(�)*+�,-,.�/()�%0'�12'('$02�/#)�''3��(4�5062���7+80+9�('9��8�0��:�+���;<�=	�	������������������
��
���>���������=	������?����@�����
��A���������
	��������
�������B�
�����������������
���������
��	��C�����
��������������������	���������
��	��������������C�C�������
�����	���	��������������������
������������>���	�����	���
��	��
��	��
��������������
������D��
�>�;�������
�E��
���F>���������
�������C�������>��������������
�����	������
�
������>����������
�
�����
���	�����	�������������������	�����	��
�����������������	����
��������� #:�02�!+��)*�G�))+%6H�I�J#60(+66�K�6+�L'%�M'2��� #:�02�!+��)*�('9��8�0��:�+�0(�5%+(2*


�������	��
�C�>����
�����
��������	�����	
��		���	��C�������
����������
	��������
������
��?�������N�������	����
�	�	�����	�����������	�
���
O��
��	��	�C��������
�
�	������
Page 74 of 116

Page 71 of 161



����������	�
���
�������
���������	�������
�����������
�������	�������������������������	�����������	��������������	�������	��������	�
��� !�"�#	
���$���
��������	��������	���	���$���#�	��$�������%�&'(()*+�'((�,*-'.)/�0/'.12�/3�4�'(-5!�6�7�(�89�:/8.��;9�.-)2�� )-5�/8.��<=�-.')*)*+�>/8.2�2�1�2)+*�1�?82-�3/.�:/8@�
A��B���	�����	����	C�����������	�������������������������
�����
��������������������$�	������������
����	��	�������	�
�0,4�D/7�.*'*>��-.')*)*+�>/8.2�E��������$�	�����������#����������
������	�B����$�	���������F���
��
�
�G��H��������������$������$�	������������	����	�������
	������������$	�	�������������������������
����������
�I�	��	��	�����	�������
����	����
����#	���������
�	#���J���������	���������	�
�K/>)'(�L�-�.M)*'*-2�/3�4�'(-5�-.')*)*+�>/8.2��J����������	���������F��	���A�����	���������������������$�	�����������
����	�	������#��������
���
������
����������J����J������E�����B���	�����������N��
�����
��J��	���#��	����FA���
	����������$���������#�������������	�	��
F������������E��	������������
�O�������P���
�P����#����������������	�Q����������#	���������	�	������%�R	�	��������$�	������������������$��������������������$�	�����������	���S����T
�O��B����������������	������������������
��"

	�	�������������������������������$�	��������������	���������#��������	��������	������U����������
�������������������������������
	���	�������$���	������
�����������
������������������
�V33)()'-�2�891'-�

Page 75 of 116

Page 72 of 161



��������	

������������
����������������
����������
���
����������� �!"##$%&'(�)*#+�%,�)�&-�&-$�.$%&#$�/*#��#,0%�10&�*%0'�2//$!&�3$%$  �&*�4$3$'*5�0�67($0#� &#0&$,�!�5'0%8��"#�0�9�� �&*�#$/#$ -�*"#�!"##$%&� &#0&$,�!�5'0%�&*�9$$&�&-$�%$$4 �*/�5":'�!�-$0'&-�%"# �%,�'$04$# �0!#*  ��%&0#�*�0%4�!#$0&$� &#0&$,�!�0'�,%9$%&�)�&-�&-$�5#�*#�&�$ �*/�*"#��%&$#4� !�5'�%0#(�5":'�!�-$0'&-�!*''$0,"$ 8�;-$�/�%0'�1$4�5'0%�)�''�:$�5#$ $%&$4�&*�������9$9:$# �0&�*"#�/0''�<=>�*%��*3$9:$#�?@A�?B?@8
C���	

������������D�E��F�
��
����
�������������G�
E�����
�����������;-$�'�%+�&*�<H��I�J �<H��I��K-�&$��05$#L���,-'�,-&�%,�&-$�M�&0'�N*'$�*/��":'�!��$0'&-�I% 5$!&*# �)�&-�%�0�N$ 5*% �3$�0%4�2//$!&�3$��":'�!��$0'&-�K*#+/*#!$�O5'$0 $�!'�!+�*%�&-$�<43*!0!(�&0:P�� �%*)�030�'0:'$8�;-$�#$5*#&�-�,-'�,-& �&-$�!#"!�0'�!*%&#�:"&�*% �904$�:(�5":'�!�-$0'&-��% 5$!&*# �4"#�%,�&-$�50%4$9�!A�&-$�#��95*#&0%!$��%� "55*#&�%,�&-$�4$'�3$#(�*/�5":'�!�-$0'&-�5#*,#09 �0%4� $#3�!$ �0%4�&-$�3�&0'�#*'$�*/�5":'�!�-$0'&-��% 5$!&*# �)�&-�%�0�#$ 5*% �3$�0%4�$//$!&�3$�5":'�!�-$0'&-�)*#+/*#!$8�;-$�#$!*99$%40&�*% ��%�&-$�#$5*#&�5#*3�4$�5*&$%&�0'�*55*#&"%�&�$ �0%4� *'"&�*% �&*� &#$%,&-$%�&-$�5":'�!�-$0'&-�)*#+/*#!$A�0%4�&*�:"�'4�"5*%�&-$�0405&0:�'�&(�0%4�3$# 0&�'�&(�4$9*% &#0&$4�:(�5":'�!�-$0'&-��% 5$!&*# �4"#�%,�&-$�50%4$9�!8�	Q���������C���
���R������C�
S�T����

Page 76 of 116

Page 73 of 161



��������	
���
�	������	�����
	������������
����������������������	
���	����	���	�����

��������������������������	���������������������	
������������������������	������	����������	
������������������	�����
�����	�����
������	������	���������������
�����	
��������� �
���!������	��������� ������������	�	�������� �����	
���������	���������	
�� �	������	������	
���
�	�� �	�������������	
������������������
���
��������"����������	�������������������������	

� �	�����������	
#�	��������������������
	������������������������������������������	��$	�������
��������������
�����	�����������������	
#�	����
��
���������	����������
�����	
������������	�������	������	�������������	���������%&'()�&*+,-,./0�12.03455�6*7854�����	�������	����	��������	
�9���������:���
�������#��;�������	����������
�����������������	���������������	

������	�����	�������������	
������	����������	
�	���������������������������	��������������	�����������	
����
���������
�	���	���������������	����	
��	�������� ��	������	���	�� �	�������	

�;����<����������
����������������������
�����	� �=��������>?����@
�������������������������������	�����	������������������
��������	���������������

�	�����	�����	���A+8,B/B,3+�B3�C/7B,-,./B5�D�EFEG�H375�H32.5B5+-,5)�I37�C*J0,-�K5/0BL�,+�H/+/M/

���=	����	
�@�

	���	�����@�����������#��
�����	
���	�����	���������������	������������������	������	������	��������	������
�����	
������;�����
���#��
�����	
���

Page 77 of 116

Page 74 of 161



��������	�
������
�����������������
�����������
�������������
�������	���������������
��������������
��
��
���������������
����
�������������������������������
�������
����
������������	���������������
����
�������� !"# $%&"�'&() *&+#
,����������
������
������-�.��/��0��/��������������		����1�����2������������������������
�����������������������������������3�������2�����
��������	��������
��������
���������������	������������������4�5�������
����������6�����������2������������/�����������7�0�����
�����������/������������/�������	���
����������
����8&9%+%:*9%!&�%(�;)%<=%&>�?! �@ABCD�EFEG
H
��/���������2��������
����������������������	���IHJ��
���K��H
��������������������������7�L
����������������
�������/���������������������������-���������������2���
������������������������������������M��������������������	��������M����3���������-����N�O�����������������M�3���PQ-����N�,�R����������/�
���M�S���
��T-����K�U��������������M�������N-����KV����������	�-�2������
��HJ��
��������M����
�����!* =(�!?�C#*<9WX�YW* #=�Z#(!) +#(

Page 78 of 116

Page 75 of 161



�����������	
������


��
�������
���
�����������������
��������
����������������
�����
���������
��������
���
���������������
������
����
���������	�
������������
�����������������
����������������������������

��
������	�
�����������
�����
��������������������
�������������� ������
 ��


��
�����	��
��������
���������
���� ������
�������������	��������������!
�	�
��������
�������	��������������
		��	��
�������
���"���������


��
�����������
���
����������������#$�����
�����%
��
��������
���������
����&"�
�����'����()(*+"�
���������
��������
����,�
��������()-.��&�����������	������
������'����(/��()(*+,��
��%
�����#�0	�
����������
���������
����&1������2����.��()(-+$����
���������
���
��������
��������������%�����	
�������())-�&"�
�����()(-+3�
���
����4��� ���&"�
�����()((+"�� �%
�
�������������
����0������
�����"��
��5�����������4��� ��
4���$��
�������������
����6�
��
�����������		�������"����
���3�
���
����$
��
����&�������
����
���		������������$�+$��
������
���������
�������"�����,�������0���������������%�����	
����,�������%�����	
�������������������
����0���%
	#���
���������
����4�	��755����"�	���#������������$��
���8�����������
����6������&()(-+4���%�����	
��"����������������
���&()((�0����4�"�	���+��
���������
����
���$��
����7��������������5��	��
���������9:;<9�=>??@AB>CD@CE@

Page 79 of 116

Page 76 of 161



����������	
���
�
	��
�����		
���
�
����
���
����
����
	��
�����������
�����
���
�����������������	
����
	�����	
�
�����
�������
�������������
�
�����������
����������������
	���������
���
����������
�����
��
����������
����
��������
		
��������
����
��
		�������
�
����������
�
����������	������	
���	
��
����������
��
����
��
�

	
�	������������������������
������	
�	��
�

	
�	��
����
�������
�����
��	���� !"#$�%&'"()�*+(',#-
.&/�0*123456�'+7�8&9:#,'(-,;�1#, 9�8&:-,(9<�����
����=���
�
�����>
����=
�?�<��
�
������������
�
�@�><ABCD��<��	���E
�
���=���
�
�����F�����

	�>
����������
?��
��G���B�����@
���
���=��
�������������
������HIHJBHK�F����
		
�������
��2+L" &+M'<��	���E
�>
��
������������HIHJBHK�<��	���E
�F�
������
�
�
	�N��
�
�
��������F�
���
	�<��	���E
O����	
����
	���@���
���
�
���<��	���E
�
���������=���
�
�����<�����
���F����
		
�����
�?
���HIHJBHK�=���
�
�����F�
���2�P0�8&9- ,$&9<��@�F�	�B��������������
������G���B�����@
���
���=��
������������<�����
����������
���
���@�����	�Q<��@R�@���?	
�������G���B�����@
���
���=��
������������S
���F����O�<�����
����������
���
���@�����	���
��
��������<����
E
�
���@	
�
��T��
����S
���F����U����������������V�����	��
���������������=���
�
�����>
�����

Page 80 of 116

Page 77 of 161



����������	
���
����	�	���������������	���������� 	!"��#��$��	%�&	'����(	)&�*��$��	)&�+&�*�,�-	.�&*���� 	.�� 	/�%��0	�#$ ��$���	�"�$��1��	%�&	2�����1��� 	�(����3	4�5$3	�� 	4�*1#�(�	6	5#�782 ��� 	!"$ ����	�&$�%�	9� #�$�+	'����(	9$�4�	�����$��� 	-$�(	���40�& 	:($�4���;<��=��>	?@A	BC����D#�� �03	,�"�*1�&	EF	G	� "���$�+	!�+�+�*���	$�	���$*$�&�1$��	/��-�& �($2	�(&�#+(	!%%���$"�	:�**#�$���$��	/�&���+$��D(#&� �03	,�"�*1�&	EH	G	)&�"���$��	/0���*	I#��$�0	J� �K	ELEH�	!"$ ����	�� 	M���	%�&	���$��J���&���� 	$�	)'NO�	#2��*$�+	�"����P	:(��4�#�	�(�$&	!"����	2�+�	��	���0	#2���� ���	-$�(	���	�%	)'NO�	�"����7Q$��� 	��	�"���P	:(��4	�#�	�(�$&	)&�������$���	2�+�	%�&	%#��	&���& $�+�	�%	)'NO�	�"����7;<��=��>	RST?@	BC����	���	U�V�����
!�($��3	8���&��$��03	�� 	�&�$%$�$��	J�����$+����	$�	Q� $�$��	�	W:��XJ'Y	Z���#&�	��&$��	[,�"7	F\]�$�����$��$��	/�*$��&	/�&$��	-$�(	Q�(�**� 	̂(��	��	Y�&$�1��	J*2�&�����	$�	QZ	Q� ���	[,�"7	F_]���$/!!	'����(	Z�1	/�# ������ 	/�*$��&	)&�������$��7	[,�"7	EF]:���1&��$�+	�(�	FLL�(	���$"�&��&0	�%	�(�	,�1��	)&$̀�	%�&	�(�	M$���"�&0	�%	J��#�$�	��	����$�+	�� 	Q����� �	J*2���	�� 	Z�+��0	[,�"7	Ea]'����(0	)�����3	'����(0	Z$"���	:�$*���	9��$�$����	�� 	/#���$��1$�$�0	$�	'����(	:�&�	[M��7	F]/���$��$���	/�$�����	�22�$� 	9����&�(	�� 	! #���$��	/�*$��&	[�9!/]�	W����.&��b�$�	�c+$�	[M��7	d]e�	����	f�
	=�����	��g	�	h�
�	i�����	jkjl	����<

Page 81 of 116

Page 78 of 161



������������	
��	��

���
��	�����	�����	�������������
�	
��������	�
�����	�����	���

������
�	��	
��	����
�� ��	
��!

 ���	�"�������	��������� �����"������	
� ����	 	����	��

���
������������
	����
��	���������	��	���#
 	�
!���	��
"�����
$	
	����
������	��
�!	
	��	�������	%��&��	�
����������	���	
����	����
$	������	����
�"�������	���������	 �������	
�������������"�������	������	����
�� �����������	�!��	�
!�����
���������	
������	�	������
!�����	���	
����	����
$	������	����	�	���������
���"�$	���	�����!

���	�!���
	�
!�����	���	
���
$	������	����������������	��������
�������	
	��
����

���$	�	!!

���������	�"�$
����������
	�����������	��	��!��	�������	�"�������	��������� �����"������	
� ����	 	����	��

�����	�������������	
��	��

���
�������	��
���������'(��!

��	����������������"
��

�
!������	$	�����)*+,*�-.+//0/1�23,�435,�67+.*6�5/0*89�.3:+.�;+*+�:3..7:*03/�/77;9<
�
�������	��� 	��
�"����!

��
�
��	���������=�����>��
����������
��	���
���		���������	
	��
	� ����
	��
����
���

�	�??@##%�A���������	��
��	��	�����
�	����
�

�������
		�����	�������	��	�
�#� "�	���B	�������
�!�	C���	���������������	��
��	��	������������	������	���"�
�	�D�"��
���E��"	
��	��FE��"	
��	��� �CG��??@##�!���������������"�����"

$�������
������������
 �B���	�������
���$������	�!

 ���	���(#�� 	�������
	�	$�����
������������������$������	���
		��� 	��"	
��	�


Page 82 of 116

Page 79 of 161



���������	�
����������
������	�
��
�����������������������	���
���������
������������	�����������
�����
���

���������
���
����
���������
����
���������
���

������������
���
���������������������	
����
���

����
� ��������������
�������
�����	�
����
�����
���
����
�
��	���	����!��
��
��	�
����"�����
��������	#�!�
����������������
���
�����!��
$�%���
�&��	�	�����������	����	���
���!�

�����'�
�����()(*$��������������
��������
�������+��
�
!��������	�
��	��,�

����

�����������������
�������-���

���

���.���

$	�������
����������������
���-����$���

$	�/012�30405202�%�����
�������������
��
������
�
����������6����
��
�����7
������	�
�����		�

�������$ 7��������
!������

��
-89*:)�;
����
����<��$�������=))�%���
����7
�$�>?6�@A(98B�
�����	��
!������������	��������
�������
CD���	�
��������������������
	�
�����

��
	����

Page 83 of 116

Page 80 of 161



Board of Director Information Session

and Discussion
Algoma Ontario Health Team| November 9, 2023

Page 84 of 116

Page 81 of 161



Land Acknowledgement
Page 85 of 116

Page 82 of 161



1

2

3

4

Algoma OHT   | 3

Overview & Progress Update

Regional & Provincial Context

Opportunities for Partner Boards

Breakout Session & Report Out

Page 86 of 116

Page 83 of 161



Algoma OHT   | 4

 To provide an update on the AOHT’s progress in advancing integrated
health and social care

 To learn about regional and provincial perspectives on the vision for
integrated health and social care via OHTs

 To learn about next steps for board of directors and their member
organizations

What are today‘s  objectives?

Page 87 of 116

Page 84 of 161



What is Integrated Care?

People and communities,
not diseases, at are at the
centre of health systems.   
Empowering people to take
charge of their own health.

Health and social services that are managed and delivered in a way that ensures people
receive a continuum of care from health promotion, disease prevention, diagnosis,
treatment, disease management, rehabilitation and palliative care services, at the

different levels and sites of care, and according to their needs, throughout their whole life.

Algoma OHT   | 5

Page 88 of 116

Page 85 of 161



PRIMARY CARE

ACUTE CARE

MENTAL HEALTH AND
ADDICTIONS SERVICES

LONG-TERM CARE

HOME CARE

COMMUNITY CARE

PUBLIC HEALTH

SOCIAL SERVICES

AMBULATORY CARE

Algoma OHT   | 6

We want individuals to experience seamless transitions throughout their care journey in a
system that is understandable, digitally-enabled, and collaborative.

Page 89 of 116

Page 86 of 161



Organizing and delivering
care with closer connections  

to local communities

Health and social providers
work as one coordinated

team

Clinical and fiscal
responsibility for delivering a
fully coordinated continuum

of care 

AOHT
approved

in 2020

Ontario Health Teams 
57

approved
OHTs

1 NE OHT
awaiting
approval

7Algoma OHT   |

Page 90 of 116

Page 87 of 161



8

We are a team of local

health professionals,

organizations, and

community members

working to create a

network where citizens

will have access to the

right care, right team,

and right care setting

when they need it. 

Algoma OHT   |

Page 91 of 116

Page 88 of 161



The total region
covered by the AOHT is
roughly 32,000 km²,
including 103,090
community members. 

Algoma OHT   | 9

Page 92 of 116

Page 89 of 161



The Partners

Algoma OHT   | 10

Page 93 of 116

Page 90 of 161



Strategic Direction

Algoma OHT   | 11

Strengthening
Care in Algoma

1 2 3

Community
Partnership and

Engagement

Building a
Foundation for
Collaboration 

Page 94 of 116

Page 91 of 161



Population Health Management (PHM)
Iterative process which

involves gathering data and
insights across many partners

(including non-traditional
healthcare providers) about an

entire defined population’s
health and social needs.

These insights inform the co-
design of proactive, integrated,
person-centred, cost effective,
equitable and efficient solutions
with the goal of improving the

health of individuals.

1 Population
Identification

2 Risk
Segmentation

3 Person-centred
Co-design

4Implementation
& Reach

5Monitor &
Evaluate

Page 95 of 116

Page 92 of 161



STRENGTHENING CARE IN ALGOMA

COVID-19 Community Vaccine Hub
78,000 doses administered

Over 17 organizations involved

Community Wellness Bus
15,595 bus visits since

inception

Healthy Aging
Coordinated Access: 99

referrals received
Frailty ID: 54 referrals to

community programs
Post-Fall Pathway: 25

patients enrolled

Progress to Date

Page 96 of 116

Page 93 of 161



COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP & ENGAGEMENT

Algoma Citizens’
Reference Panel
Over 33 citizens

convened
representative of

Algoma

Caregiver ID
Over 500 caregivers onboarded

Expansion to the North Shore Health
Network

29 caregivers participating in Phase 2
Focus Groups

Community
Partnership Toolkit

Adopted by the
Ministry of Health

with French
translation

Project Percolator
Over 500 attendees since

inception

Progress to Date

Page 97 of 116

Page 94 of 161



BUILDING A FOUNDATION FOR COLLABORATION

Mental Health and Addictions
Planning Session 

Over 27 organizations in
attendance

Systems planning table convened
with a work plan in place

Guiding Values and Principles
Adoption by multiple partners

cQIP Development
186 patients screen for

cervical cancer

Progress to Date

Page 98 of 116

Page 95 of 161



Health
Equity-Driven
Quadruple
Aim

Source: Middlesex London Ontario Health Team, 2023

Measuring Ontario Health Team
success

Page 99 of 116

Page 96 of 161



Algoma OHT   | 18

Mental Health and Addictions:
Community Wellness Bus

Page 100 of 116

Page 97 of 161



19

Salvation Army

Gore Street

Soup Kitchen

Launched in April 2021 with more than 10 partners

Evidence-based mobile outreach model of care to improve access
and outcomes and reduce gaps in mental health and addictions
care

Leverages organizational programs and expertise to address
unmet needs in the downtown core

More than 15,436 visits since inception

Provides on-site medical assessments and care, basic necessities,
harm reduction supplies, peer support, health and social service
referrals 

Project Overview

Page 101 of 116

Page 98 of 161



Algoma OHT   | 20

Operates via in-kind resources from over
10 service, community, and co-location
partners 
Staffing and resources are primarily
provided by 6 lead organizations
Agreed-upon objectives 

Partnership is built on trusting
relationships. 
Governed by a Partnership Agreement
Frequent communication 
Clearly defined roles and responsibilities

Sharing resources and working toward a
common goal.

Success of the

Partnership

Algoma OHT   | 19

Page 102 of 116

Page 99 of 161



 Expand AOHT
membership,

specif ically in
North and East

Algoma

 Refresh
decision making

structures
through a  

Collaborative
Decision Making

Arrangement 

 Pr ior it ize work
over the next 3

years via a Logic
Model exercise

Algoma OHT   | 20

Page 103 of 116

Page 100 of 161



Building OHTs to Last: 

Ministry of Health Guidance

Common structure to progress to full implementation
Establishing a new not-for-profit corporation

Consistent collaboration in decision making
Standardizing groups that must be involved in decision making

Clinical pathways to improve patient care
Implementing common integrated clinical pathways for OHTs

Sustainable operational capacity
Identifying an operational support provider for back-office functions

Consistency in OHT-led public communications
Setting a consistent and recognizable approach to communications

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

21

In November 2022, the Ministry of Health released The Path Forward,
identifying priorities towards OHT maturity.

Algoma OHT   |

Page 104 of 116

Page 101 of 161



OHT Acceleration: Key Takeaways

Twelve OHTs will be supported to advance rapidly towards maturity and be considered for
designation under the Connecting Care Act, 2019. 
The twelve OHTs will share lessons learned to support continuous learning and readiness for
the next phase of implementation for all OHTs, and will help inform the processes, guidance,
and templates that other teams will follow.
Starting in Q3 23/24, the ministry and Ontario Health plan to release guidance, resources, and
supports for OHTs on key elements of The Path Forward, including primary care networks and
governance (re: OHT not-for-profit, back-office support through operational support
providers).
The ministry is developing an ‘OHT Maturity Framework’ that will help OHTs in their journey
from the current state to a mature state. OHTs will have the opportunity to inform the
framework through various channels. 

Algoma OHT   | 22

On September 27ᵗʰ, 2023, the MOH announced the next steps to accelerate Ontario Health Team
progress and impact. 

Page 105 of 116

Page 102 of 161



Algoma OHT   | 23

The 12 Ontario Health Teams will be supported to achieve a set of standardized structural and
patient-facing milestones. 

Structural Patient-Facing

Create a not-for-profit corporation Put in place a standardized patient navigation
solution that integrates with Health811

Establish a primary care network Implement two or more integrated clinical
pathways

Standardize back-office supports Continue work on local signature initiatives
tailored to local populations

Develop a home care readiness plan for the
eventual delivery of home care

OHT Acceleration: Key Takeaways

Page 106 of 116

Page 103 of 161



OHT Acceleration: 

What does this mean for the AOHT? 

Algoma OHT   |

Focus on:
Building a strong foundation
Expanding relationships
Community-level needs of Algoma residents

24

Page 107 of 116

Page 104 of 161



Algoma OHT   | 25

20 minutes Report BackPre-designated
Small Groups

Page 108 of 116

Page 105 of 161



Discussion Questions

What does being involved in the AOHT mean for
your organization?
How do you support senior leadership in
participating in AOHT projects?
What further information do you need to keep
informed? 

1.

2.

3.

Algoma OHT   | 26

Page 109 of 116

Page 106 of 161



Report Out

Algoma OHT   | 27

Top 3 (new) comments to
discuss with the group?

Page 110 of 116

Page 107 of 161



Algoma OHT   | 28

Keep the Conversation Going
Share post-session material with your respective
board members

AOHT Monthly Director updates at board meetings

 Incorporate feedback from the session into Logic
Model exercise

 Attend Project Percolator meetings

Page 111 of 116

Page 108 of 161



Victoria Aceti Chlebus
Director, Integrated Care

Victoria.aceti@algomaoht.ca
www.algomaoht.ca

Reach out!

Page 112 of 116

Page 109 of 161

mailto:Victoria.aceti@algomaoht.ca


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: All Health Units
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] Message for alPHa Members - Strengthening Public Health – Planning Materials and Next Steps
Date: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 1:25:23 PM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
Yesterday, the Ministry of Health sent a memo to all local public health agencies providing
planning materials and information regarding potential merger opportunities for local public
health agencies (LPHAs). Details can be found in the memo and in the Ministry’s slide deck.
(These documents are posted on the members’ side of the alPHa website. You will need to log
in to access the files and then click on the links in this email.)
 
As noted in the memo, in August 2023, the government announced the Ministry of Health's
commitment to working closely with LPHAs, municipalities, and the broader public health
sector on a strategy to strengthen public health, centred on three priorities:

 
1. Clarifying roles and responsibilities through the Ontario Public Health Standards
(OPHS).
2. Supporting voluntary mergers among LPHAs.
3. Providing stable, sustainable funding to LPHAs.

 
alPHa members are encouraged to be involved in discussions at the local level with their
respective LPHAs. In the coming days, the Ministry has indicated they will be reaching out
directly to LPHAs and Boards of Health to facilitate regional engagement, and support
proposal development for LPHAs interested in voluntary mergers. They will be working with
the Associate Chief Medical Officers of Health to schedule meetings. The Ministry is
encouraging LPHAs to engage with local communities and priority populations including
Indigenous and Francophone communities early in the planning and assessment process.
 
Additional information on the merger proposal submission process (including merger proposal
business case template and eligible expenses) will be shared with the 2024 Annual Service
Plan and Budget Submission template in early December 2023, with merger proposal business
cases due in March 2024. In the coming weeks, the Ministry will also provide updates on the
Roles and Responsibilities and Funding workstreams of the Strengthening Public Health
Strategy.
 
alPHa will continue to provide information as it becomes available and will work with key

Page 113 of 116

Page 110 of 161

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:allhealthunits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=A9708D15-5397-4143-BC9E-5CAC1C57C8B1
https://www.alphaweb.org/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=55D799B5-78B6-4D74-B666-B1E21BE88CA9


stakeholders including the Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health and the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO).
 
Members are encouraged to participate in alPHa’s upcoming Fall Symposium where key public
health issues, including voluntary mergers, will be discussed.
 
Take Care,
 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 
 
 

Page 114 of 116

Page 111 of 161

https://www.alphaweb.org/events/EventDetails.aspx?id=1763220&group=
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: All Health Units
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] alPHa Summary - Fall Economic Statement
Date: Thursday, November 2, 2023 4:43:41 PM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

alPHa Summary
2023 Ontario Economic Outlook and Fiscal Review

Building a Strong Ontario Together
 
 
 
 

The 2023 Economic Outlook and Fiscal Review was released on November 2nd, 2023. In keeping with
the priorities that the Ontario Government has clearly signaled since its election, there is a heavy
and literal emphasis on building, with investments in natural resources (mining), manufacturing,
energy production, transportation (highways and transit), housing, and other infrastructure
(hospitals, long-term care, schools).
 
There is no direct mention in the report of public health, but there are several points that may
nonetheless be of interest for further examination as they relate to public health programs and
services.
 

Coordinated Vaping Product Taxation Agreement with the federal government.
Legislated increase to minimum wage (from $15.50 to $16.55).
Additional investments in health human resources.
Expansion of breast cancer screening to those 40-49 of age.
Improving access to medical services for youth, including mental health.

 
Information was also provided about the launch of the 2024 pre-budget consultation, the online
portal for which can be accessed here.
 
Links to the official documents:
 

Landing page for the 2023 Ontario Economic Outlook is here.
The full statement can be read online or downloaded here.
Highlights of the Report are provided here.
The News Release is here.

 
We hope that you find this information useful.
 
Take Care,

Page 115 of 116

Page 112 of 161

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:allhealthunits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
https://www.ontario.ca/page/2024-budget-consultations
https://budget.ontario.ca/2023/fallstatement/index.html
https://budget.ontario.ca/2023/fallstatement/contents.html
https://budget.ontario.ca/2023/fallstatement/highlights.html
https://news.ontario.ca/en/release/1003736/building-a-strong-ontario-together


 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 
 

Page 116 of 116

Page 113 of 161

mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


BOARD MEMBERS APH MEMBERS
PRESENT: Sally Hagman - Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - Medical Officer of Health & CEO

Luc Morrissette - 1st Vice-Chair
Deborah Graystone - 2nd Vice-Chair

Rick Webb - Director of Corporate Services
Donald McConnell
Loretta O'Neill Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Sonia Tassone Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services
Suzanne Trivers Liliana Bressan - Manager of Effective Public Health Practice
Matthew Shoemaker Nicole Lindahl - Manager of Emergency Preparedness & Response
Jody Wildman Tania Caputo - Board Secretary

Trina Mount - Executive Assistant

GUESTS:

1.0 Meeting Called to Order - 5:21 pm
a. 
b.
c. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda
Moved: M. Shoemaker

Seconded: D. Graystone

CARRIED

3.0 Delegations / Presentations
a. 

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: S. Tassone

CARRIED

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes

RESOLUTION
2023-80

THAT the Board of Health meeting minutes dated June 28, 2023, be approved as presented.

Not applicable. 

Roll Call and welcome to new Board member Donald McConnell (Provincial Appointment)

RESOLUTION
2023-79

THAT the Board of Health meeting agenda dated September 27, 2023 be approved as presented.

Local Opioid Update - A holistic approach to addressing & preventing substance use and opioid-related harms
Hilary Cutler, the APH Program Manager of Community Wellness, provided an overview of APH’s holistic approach 
to addressing and preventing substance use and opioid-related harms. She described how this work is situated 
within provincial and internal accountability structures, the overall public health approach, and the next steps as a 
community. Supervised consumption sites were discussed as an intervention, and plans underway to advocate for 
provincial funding.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest - No conflicts were declared. 

Board of Health Meeting 
MINUTES

September 27, 2023 at 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video/Teleconference 

Kristy Harper - Director of Health Promotion & Chief Nursing Officer

Dr. John Tuinema - Associate Medical Officer of Health & Director of Health 
Protection

Julila Hemphill

Hilary Cutler - Manager of Community Wellness

Land Acknowledgment - Read by S. Hagman.

Page 114 of 161



6.0 Reports to the Board
a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports

i. 

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: D. McConnell

CARRIED

b. Finance and Audit 
i.

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: D. McConnell

CARRIED

b.
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: D. McConnell

CARRIED

i.
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: D. McConnell

CARRIED

7.0 New Business/General Business
a.

RESOLUTION
2023-84

THAT the Board of Health approve Policy 02-05-055 - Board Self-Evaluation, as presented.

Briefing Note - Situational awareness of public health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026.
THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit receive this briefing note for information; and

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit support the Board Chair and Medical Officer of 
Health to seek out opportunities to engage with the Ministry of Health, alongside northern Ontario municipal and 
Indigenous partners where appropriate, with regards to the provincial review of the funding methodology for 
public health, such that the realities of northern community health needs and public health service delivery in the 
north are accurately represented for consideration; and

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit support the Board Chair and Medical Officer of 
Health to engage with northeastern Ontario counterparts for further exploratory dialogue about voluntary mergers 
in light of recent provincial announcements and building on previous collaborations; and

THAT the Board Chair ensures reporting back to the Board on this matter at future meetings.

THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 2023, as 
presented.

Governance Committee Chair Report
RESOLUTION

2023-83
THAT the Governance Committee Chair Report for September 13, 2023,  be accepted as presented.

Policy 02-05-055 - Board Self-Evaluation

RESOLUTION
2023-82

MOH Report - September 27, 2023
• Program Highlight –  Planning effective public health programs and services for 2024

RESOLUTION
2023-81

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for September 27, 2023 be accepted as presented.

J. Loo provided a summary of the report highlighting her presentations over the summer at several municipal 
councils. She spoke about the opportunity to reconnect with municipal partners to highlight the breadth and 
value of APH services and have discussions on the top-of-mind concerns in Algoma communities. Municipalities 
interested in a council presentation may contact the Board Secretary tcaputo@algomapublichealth.com to 
make arrangements. 
An update on the significant efforts related to school immunization work was given in the report as well as the 
work with Indigenous partners reflected in updates to our welcome signage at APH. 
J. Loo introduced the program report highlight remarking on the behind the scenes work of the Foundations 
and Strategic Support Team (FASST). 

L. Dunseath provided a summary of the financial statements.
Unaudited Financial Statements ending July 31, 2023

Page 115 of 161



8.0 Correspondence
a. 

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

i.

j.

k.

l.

m.

n.

o.

9.0
a. alPHa Information Break - September 2023
b.
c. Health Promotion Ontario White Paper on the Value of Local Health Promotion

10.0 Addendum

2023 alPHa Fall Symposium - D. Graystone will attend the virtual conference. 

Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, the Chief Medical Officer of Health, from the Association of 
Ontario Public Health Business Administrators, regarding encourage to create sustained public health funding 
levels that are supportive of public health's response to the requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards, 
dated July 7, 2023. 

Letter to Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, from Thunder Bay District Health Unit, regarding Letter of Support 
- Physical Literacy for Healthy Active Children, dated July 14, 2023.

Letter to Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks, from Timiskaming Health Unit, regarding Request for 
Air Quality Monitoring Station in the Timiskaming Health Unit Region, dated August 1, 2023.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health of Ontario, the City of London Council, 
the County of Middlesex Council, the Member of Provincial Parliament for London Fanshawe, the Member of 
Provincial Parliament for London North Centre, the Member of Provincial Parliament for London West, the Member 
of Provincial Parliament for Elgin-Middlesex-London, the Member of Provincial Parliament for Lambton-Kent-
Middlesex, from Middlesex-London Health Unit, regarding Middlesex-London Health Unit 2024 Budget, dated 
August 2, 2023.
Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies, 
regarding Public Health Funding and Capacity Announcement, dated August 23, 2023.

Letter to partner agencies of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, 
regarding notice of Clinical Service Vice President and Chief Nursing Officer Position Changes, dated September 1, 
2023.
Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit regarding Bill 103, 
Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023, dated September 7, 2023. 

Letter to the Minister of Finance, the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from Huron Perth Public Health, 
regarding Support for Healthy Public Policy Regarding Alcohol Marketplace and Product Sales, dated September 
8, 2023. 

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Huron Perth Public Health, regarding Bill 93, Joshua's Law (Lifejackets for 
Life), 2023, dated September 8, 2023.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier, Minister of Health, from Timiskaming Health Unit, regarding 
Universal, No-cost Coverage for all Prescription Contraceptive Options for all Ontarians, dated September 15, 
2023.

Items for Information 

Letter to Algoma Public Health, from the Premier of Ontario, response to Income-based policy interventions to 
effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI) letter of July 4, 2023, dated September 20, 2023.

Letter to the Minister of Health from Algoma Public Health regarding support for Bill S-254 an Act to amend the 
Food and Drug Act (warning labels on alcoholic beverages) dated June 8, 2023.

Email to APH from the office of the Minister of Health, response to letter in support of Bill S-254, an Act to amend 
the Food and Drug Act, (warning labels on alcoholic beverages)  dated August 14, 2023.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Public Health Sudbury & Districts, regarding Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario 
Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023, dated June 28, 2023.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier, the Minister of Children, Community and Social Services, 
from Algoma Public Health, regarding Income-based policy interventions to effectively reduce household food 
insecurity (HFI), dated July 4, 2023.

Page 116 of 161



11.0

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: D. McConnell

CARRIED

12.0
Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.
a.

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: D. McConnell

CARRIED

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings:

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Wednesday October 18, 2023 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video Conference

Board of Health
Wednesday, October 25, 2023 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video Conference

14.0 Evaluation
a. Evaluation

15.0 Adjournment 
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: D. McConnell
THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

CARRIED

Tania Caputo, BOH Secretary 

Date

RESOLUTION

In-Camera - 6:55 pm 
For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, adoption of in-
camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION
2023-85

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Open Meeting - 7:15 pm

Risk Management Model 2023/24
RESOLUTION

2023-89
THAT the Risk Management Model 2023/24 be accepted as presented.

Sally Hagman, BOH Chair

Date

2023-90

October 25, 2023 October 25, 2023

Page 117 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

Tuesday, November 7, 2023

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS speedinà on Municipality of Wawa roads is a concer2nd
the community; and

WHEREAS barriers and delays to enforcement pose a danger to the community; and

WHEREAS the Municipality of Wawa like many other small communities in Northern Ontario
has limited resources to implement speed mitigation, road design and re-design; and

WHEREAS local police service has limited resources to undertake speed enforcement; and;

WHEREAS s.205.1 of the Highway Traffic Act (HTA) provides that Automated Speed
Enforcement systems (ASE) may only be placed in designated community safety zones and
school safety zones,

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of
Wawa does hereby support the request of the City of Cambridge in that the Ontario Government
amend s.205. 1 of the HTA to permit municipalities to locate an ASE system permanently or
temporarily on any roadway under the jurisdiction of municipalities and as determined by
municipalities and not be restricted to only community safety zones and school safety zones;

AND FURTHERMORE THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Ontario Minister of
Transportation, the Ontario Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Paul Calandra, Algoma
Manitoulin MPP Michael Mantha, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) and all
Ontario Municipalities.

!R4W$VET —
IIECORDED VOTE

CARRIED MAYOR AND COUNCIL YES NO

[1 DEFEATED Mitch Hatfield

El TABLED Cathy Cannon

El RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon

El PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffmann

El WITHDRAWN Joseph Opato
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

fl Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote
and influence.

Clerk:____________________________________________

MAYOR - MELANIE PILON CLERK - MAURY O’NEILL

Resolution # RC23261 Meeting Order: 6

Mo by: Seconded by:

can occur in all areas of

This document is available in alternate formats.
Page 118 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

/ —I J

WHEREAS thhCorporation of the
Northern Ontario with limited financial

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS the Municipality owns and operates the water treatment facility, water
distribution facility, wastewater treatment facility and wastewater collection facility which
service the residents of the Municipality of Wawa; and

WHEREAS the Municipality of Wawa requires Class II Water Treatment Operators for
its facilities; and

WHEREAS the Municipality of Wawa attempts to provide training as prescribed by the
Province of Ontario to obtain the necessary classification(s); and

WHEREAS it has struggled in obtaining a full staff compliment who is eager to take on
the responsibilities of water treatment, distribution, wastewater collection and treatment
operations; and

WHEREAS any new employees of the Municipality
training is becoming increasingly difficult to procure; and

WHEREAS the Province of Ontario
treatment plants to ensure compliance; and

WHEREAS the Province of Ontario is promoting and providing an increased number of
training opportunities for a variety of trades;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality
of Wawa petitions the Province of Ontario to expand water treatment training
opportunities for communities within Ontario; and

p.2....

Tuesday, November 7, 2023

Resolution # RC23262 Meeting Order: 7

Moved by: Seconded by:

n? if
Municipality of Wawa a small community in
resources; and

of Wawa require certification and

has implemented stringent review of water

This document is available in alternate formats.

Page 119 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

FURTHERMORE, that the training be delivered in a method that is flexible and
affordable; and

FURTHERMORE, utilize existing networks, such as Contact North, for on-line exam
preparation and exam supervision; and

FURTHERMORE, the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa forward a
copy of this resolution to Premier Doug Ford, Minister of Environment, Conservation and
Parks, Andrea Khanjin, Algoma Manitoulin MPP Michael Mantha and Walkerton Clean
Water Centre, and all Ontario Municipalities.

JTION RESULT :taJ;’ JZECD13DED VOTE

1j CARRIED MAYOR AND COUNCIL YES NO

LI DEFEATS) Mitch Hatfield
LI TABLED Cathy Cannon

LI RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon

LI PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffmann

LI WITHDRAWN Joseph Opato

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

jJ Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote
and influence.

Clerk:

MAYORMELANIEPILON CLERK - MAURY O’NEILL

&%r4
This document is available in alternate formats.

Page 120 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

Tuesday, November 7, 2023

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

Resolution # RC23263

Moved by:

WHEREAS the local newspaper company Algda News Review has ceased the print
publication of its weekly newspaper and printed its final edition on July 6, 2022; and

WHEREAS the Legislation Act, 2006 provides a definition of “newspaper” which applies
to every Ontario Act Regulation, as in a provision requiring publication, means a
document that, (a) is printed in sheet form, published at regular intervals of a week or
less and circulated to the general public, and (b) consists primarily of news of current
events of general interest; (“journal”); and

WHEREAS Ontario Municipalities are required to follow publication and notice
requirements for Provincial Acts and Regulations; and

WHEREAS communities such as the Municipality of Wawa cannot comply
publication requirements in Provincial Acts and Regulations as the Algoma
Review publication if no longer being printed in sheet form and there are no other
news publications fitting the definition of “newspaper”; and

WHEREAS some small rural Ontario Municipalities may not have the means to bring an
application to the Court to ask for directions and approval of an alternate manner of
providing notice;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the
Municipality of Wawa does hereby support the Township of McKellar and request the
Provincial Government to make an amendment to the Legislation Act, 2006 to include
digital publications as an acceptable means of publication and notice requirements for
Provincial acts and Regulations; and

Meeting Order: 8

with
News
local

p.2...

This document is available in alternate formats.
Page 121 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

FURTHERMORE request the support of all Ontario Municipalities; and

FURTHERMORE THAT this resolution be forwarded to the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing Paul Calandra, Algoma Manitoulin MPP Michael Mantha, and the
Association of Ontario Municipalities (AMO).

RJSOLUTION RESULT p... RECORDED VOTE

E CARRIED MAYOR AND COUNCIL YES NO

El DEFEATED Mitch Hatfield

El TABLED Cathy Cannon

fl RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon

El PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffmann

El WITHDRAWN Joseph Opato

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

El Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote
and influence.

Clerk:

MAYOR - MELANIE PILON CLERK - MAURY O’NEILL

2%
Thi document is available in alternate formats.

Page 122 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

Tuesday, November 7, 2023

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS Canada has 90,000 volunteer firefighters who provide fire and all hazard
emergency services to their communities; in addition, approximately 8,000 essential
search and rescue volunteers respond to thousands of incidents every year; and

WHEREAS many of these individuals receive some form of pay on call, an honorarium,
or are given some funding to cover expenses, but they do not draw a living wage from
firefighting; and;

WHEREAS without volunteer firefighters and search and rescue volunteers, thousands
of communities in Canada would have no fire and emergency response coverage; and;

WHEREAS
individuals,
to $10,000;

in 2013, the federal government initiated a tax credit recognizing these
and calling on the federal government to increase this tax credit from $3,000
and;

WHEREAS volunteer firefighters account for 71% of Canada’s total firefighting essential
first responders;

• The tax code of Canada currently allows volunteer firefighters and search and
rescue volunteers to claim a $3,000 tax credit if 200 hours of volunteer services
were completed in a calendar year;

• This works out to a mere $450 per year, which we allow these essential
volunteers to keep of their own income from their regular jobs, $2.25 an hour;

• If they volunteer more than 200 hours, which many do, this tax credit becomes
even less;

• These essential volunteers not only put their lives on the line and give their time,
training and efforts to Canadians, but they also allow cities and municipalities to
keep property taxes lower than if paid services were required;

p.2...

Resolution # RC23265

This document is available in alternate formats.

Page 123 of 161



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

• It would also help retain these volunteers in a time when volunteerism is
decreasing.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the
Municipality of Wawa call upon the Government of Canada to support Bill C-310 and
enact amendments to subsections 118.06 (2) and 118.07 (2) of the Income Tax Act in
order to increase the amount of the tax credits for volunteer firefighting and search and
rescue volunteer services from $3,000 to $10,000; and;

FURTHERMORE THAT a copy of the resolution be shared with the Association of Fire
Chiefs of Ontario, Algoma Mutual Aid Association, Association of Municipalities of
Ontario and all Ontario municipalities.

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

L Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote and
influence.

Clerk:

I MAYOR - MELANIE PILON I CLERK - MAURY O’NE

-//2 ,c?

I CARRIED
ULT

MAYOR AND COUNCIL
L DEFEATED Mitch Hatfield

TABLED Cathy Cannon
H RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon
H PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffmann
H WITHDRAWN Joseph Opato

YES NO

This document is available in alternate formats.

Page 124 of 161



Page 125 of 161



 

30 Centre Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 2X1 | 519.941.2816 | dufferincounty.ca   

 

 

November 10, 2023 

 

Honourable Premier Doug Ford 

Legislative Building 

Queen’s Park 

Toronto ON  M7A 1A1 

 

At its regular meeting on November 9, 2023, Dufferin County Council passed the following 

resolution: 

 

WHEREAS the safety of our community and its members is of extreme importance to 

every Dufferin County resident, as well as to Dufferin County Council; 

 

WHEREAS gender-based violence and intimate partner violence (IPV), often referred 

to as domestic violence, means any use of physical or sexual force, actual or 

threatened in an intimate relationship, including emotional and/or psychological 

abuse or harassing behaviour; 

 

WHEREAS on August 16th, 2023, Justice Minister Arif Virani described gender-based 

violence as “an epidemic” in the federal government’s formal response to a coroner’s 

inquest, also stating that his government is committed to ending the gender-based 

violence epidemic “in all its forms, and is working to address any gaps in the Criminal 

Code to ensure a robust justice system response”; 

 

WHEREAS by declaring gender-based violence and intimate partner violence an 

epidemic, the County of Dufferin can join the growing number of municipalities and 

regions in demanding action from all levels of government to address this growing 

epidemic; 

 

WHEREAS the incidences of gender-based violence and intimate partner violence 

have increased exponentially throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and has not 

decreased, while funding to provide the growing demand of services and support for 

victims and survivors has not kept pace; 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the County of Dufferin officially declare intimate-partner 

violence an epidemic, as per recommendation #1 from the Culleton, Kuzyk, and 

Warmerdam (CKW) Inquest; 

 

Page 126 of 161



 

30 Centre Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 2X1 | 519.941.2816 | dufferincounty.ca   

 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the County of Dufferin recommends that 

gender-based violence and intimate partner violence be declared an epidemic in the 

Province of Ontario; 

AND THAT the County of Dufferin requests that the Federation of Canadian 

Municipalities (FCM), the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), and all 

municipalities and regions in Ontario declare gender-based violence and intimate 

partner violence an epidemic; 

 

AND THAT the County of Dufferin requests that the provincial and federal 

governments enact the additional 85 recommendations from the CKW Inquest, 

which provides a roadmap to preventing intimate partner violence from escalating to 

femicide; 

 

AND THAT the County of Dufferin requests that the federal government starts this 

enactment by adding the word “femicide” as a term to the Criminal Code of Canada; 

 

AND THAT the County of Dufferin requests that the provincial and federal 

governments provide the necessary support to municipalities, regions, and their 

emergency and social services to meaningfully address the gender-based violence 

and intimate partner violence epidemic; 

 

AND THAT the Clerk be directed to send a copy of this motion to the Honourable 

Premier of Ontario, Doug Ford, The Right Honourable Prime Minister of Canada, 

Justin Trudeau, Members of Parliament, Members of Provincial Parliament, the 

United Nations, and all Ontario Municipalities. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Michelle Dunne 
 

Michelle Dunne 

Clerk 

 

Cc Prime Minister Trudeau 

Kyle Seeback, MPP 

Sylvia Jones, MP 

United Nations of Canada 

Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 

All Ontario Municipalities 

Page 127 of 161



 
 
November 13, 2023 
 
 
Re:  Gender Based Violence and Intimate Partner Violence an Epidemic 
 
Please be advised that the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Orangeville, at its 
Regular Council Meeting held on October 30, 2023, approved the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS the safety of our community and its members is of 
extreme importance to every Orangeville resident, as well as to 
Orangeville Council; and 
 
WHEREAS gender-based violence and intimate partner violence 
(IPV), often referred to as domestic violence, means any use of 
physical or sexual force, actual or threatened in an intimate 
relationship, including emotional and/or psychological abuse or 
harassing behaviour; and 
 
WHEREAS on August 16th, 2023, Justice Minister Arif Virani 
described gender-based violence as “an epidemic” in the federal 
government’s formal response to a coroner’s inquest, also stating 
that his government is committed to ending the gender-based 
violence epidemic “in all its forms, and is working to address any 
gaps in the Criminal Code to ensure a robust justice system 
response”; and 
 
WHEREAS by declaring gender-based violence and intimate partner 
violence an epidemic, the Town of Orangeville can join the growing 
number of municipalities and regions in demanding action from all 
levels of government to address this growing epidemic; and 
 
WHEREAS the incidences of gender-based violence and intimate 
partner violence have increased exponentially throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic and has not decreased, while funding to 
provide the growing demand of services and support for victims 
and survivors has not kept pace; 

Page 128 of 161



BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Town of Orangeville officially declare intimate-partner violence 
an epidemic, as per recommendation #1 from the Culleton, Kuzyk, 
and Warmerdam (CKW) Inquest; and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 
THAT:

2. The Town of Orangeville recommends that gender-based violence 
and intimate partner violence be declared an epidemic in the 
Province of Ontario; and

3. That the Town of Orangeville requests that the Federation of 
Canadian Municipalities (FCM), the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario (AMO), and all municipalities and regions in Ontario declare 
gender-based violence and intimate partner violence an epidemic; 
and

4. That the Town of Orangeville requests that the provincial and 
federal governments enact the additional 85 recommendations from 
the CKW Inquest, which provides a roadmap to preventing intimate 
partner violence from escalating to femicide; and

5. That the Town of Orangeville requests that the federal government 
starts this enactment by adding the word “femicide” as a term to 
the Criminal Code of Canada; and

6. That the Town of Orangeville requests that the provincial and 
federal governments provide the necessary support to 
municipalities, regions, and their emergency and social services to 
meaningfully address the gender-based violence and intimate 
partner violence epidemic; and

7. That the Acting Clerk be directed to send a copy of this motion to 
the County of Dufferin, the Honourable Premier of Ontario, Doug 
Ford, The Right Honourable Prime Minister of Canada, Justin 
Trudeau, Members of Parliament, Members of Provincial 
Parliament, the United Nations, and all Ontario Municipalities.

Carried Unanimously. 

Yours truly, 

Tracy Macdonald 
Acting Clerk

Page 129 of 161



Page 130 of 161



Page 131 of 161



Page 132 of 161



Page 133 of 161



Page 134 of 161



Page 135 of 161



Page 136 of 161



Page 137 of 161



Page 138 of 161



Page 139 of 161



Page 140 of 161



Page 141 of 161



Page 142 of 161



Page 143 of 161



Page 144 of 161



Page 145 of 161



Staci Landry, Deputy Clerk Telephone: 519-376-4440 ext. 1235 

City of Owen Sound Facsimile: 519-371-0511 
808 2nd Avenue East Email: slandry@owensound.ca 
Owen Sound, ON N4K 2H4 Website: www.owensound.ca 

November 10, 2023 

Via Email 

Hon. Doug Downey 

Attorney General 
McMurtry-Scott Building 

11th Floor, 720 Bay Street 
Toronto, ON M7A 2S9 

Doug.Downey@pc.ola.org  
 

Dear Minister Downey: 
 

Re: Support for Township of McKellar’s Resolution respecting a Call for 
an Amendment to the Legislation Act, 2006 

 

City Council, at its meeting held on November 6, 2023, considered the above-
noted matter, and passed Resolution No. R-231106-006 as follows: 

 

"THAT in consideration of correspondence received on the November 6, 

2023 Consent Agenda respecting a Call for an Amendment to the 

Legislation Act, 2006, City Council requests that: 

1. Staff send a letter to the Attorney General, in support of the 

resolution from the Township of McKellar; and 

2. The letter be sent to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, 

M.P. and M.P.P. for Bruce-Grey Owen Sound, and all Ontario 

municipalities." 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Staci Landry 

Deputy Clerk 
 

Encl. Township of McKellar – Call for an Amendment to the Legislation Act, 2006 
 

cc: Hon. Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
 Alex Ruff, MP Bruce-Grey-Owen Sound 

 Rick Byers, MPP Bruce-Grey-Owen Sound 
All Ontario Municipalities 

Page 146 of 161

mailto:Doug.Downey@pc.ola.org


Page 1 of 2 

 Township of McKellar____________________ 
701 Hwy #124, P.O. Box 69, McKellar, Ontario POG 1C0  

 Phone: (705) 389-2842 
     Fax: (705) 389-1244 

October 19, 2023 
Hon. Doug Downey 
Attorney General  
McMurtry-Scott Bldg 11th Flr, 720 Bay St. 
Toronto, ON M7A 2S9 

Sent via email: Doug.Downey@ontario.ca  

RE: Call for an Amendment to the Legislation Act, 2006 

Dear Mr. Downey,  

At the Regular Meeting of Council held on October 17, 2023, the Council of the 
Corporation of the Township of McKellar carried the following resolution:  

Resolution No. 23-671  
Moved by: Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by: Councillor Zulak 

WHEREAS Metroland Media Group has sought bankruptcy protection and will cease 
the print publication of its weekly community newspapers across Ontario, moving to an 
online-only model; and 

WHEREAS Neil Oliver, Chief Executive Officer and President of Metroland Media 
Group, said the 71 Metroland community publications will be digital only going forward; 
and 

WHEREAS the Legislation Act, 2006 provides a definition of “newspaper” which applies 
to every Ontario Act and Regulation, as in a provision requiring publication, means a 
document that, (a) is printed in sheet form, published at regular intervals of a week or 
less and circulated to the general public, and (b) consists primarily of news of current 
events of general interest; (“journal”); and 

WHEREAS Ontario Municipalities are required to follow publication and notice 
requirements for Provincial Acts and Regulations; and  

Page 147 of 161

mailto:Doug.Downey@ontario.ca


Page 2 of 2 

 

WHEREAS communities such as the West Parry Sound Area cannot comply with 
publication requirements in Provincial Acts and Regulations as the Parry Sound North 
Star news publication is no longer being printed in sheet form and there are no other 
local news publications fitting the definition of “newspaper”; and  
 
WHEREAS some small, rural, Ontario Municipalities may not have the means to bring 
an application to the Court to ask for directions and approval of an alternate manner of 
providing notice;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the 
Township of McKellar does hereby request the Provincial government to make an 
amendment to the Legislation Act, 2006 to include digital publications as an acceptable 
means of publication and notice requirements for Provincial Acts and Regulations; and  
 
FURTHER request the support of all Ontario Municipalities; and  
 
FURTHER THAT this resolution be forwarded to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing, Paul Calandra; Parry Sound-Muskoka MPP, Graydon Smith; The Association 
of Ontario Municipalities (AMO); CEO and President of Metroland Media Group, Neil 
Oliver and all Ontario Municipalities.  
 

Carried 
 
Regards,  
 
 
 
Karlee Britton 
Deputy Clerk 
Township of McKellar  
deputyclerk@mckellar.ca 
(705) 389-2842 x5 
 
cc:   
 
Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing  
Graydon Smith, MPP Parry Sound-Muskoka 
The Association of Ontario Municipalities (AMO)  
Neil Oliver, CEO & President, Metroland Media Group 
All Ontario Municipalities  
 
 

Page 148 of 161

mailto:deputyclerk@mckellar.ca


Page 149 of 161



Page 150 of 161



Page 151 of 161



Page 152 of 161



Page 153 of 161



 

 

www.elgincounty.ca     ·     450 Sunset Drive, St. Thomas, ON N5R 5V1    ·    (519) 631 - 1460 

 
 
 
 
 
 
November 16, 2023 
 
Hon. Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Premier’s Office 
Room 281 
Legislative Building, Queen’s Park  
Toronto, ON  M7A 1A1 
premier@ontario.ca  
 
Re: Resolution in Support for Bill 21, Fixing Long-Term Care Amendment Act 
 
Dear Premier Ford, 
 
At its meeting on November 14, 2023 Elgin County Council considered a resolution passed 
by the Council of the Corporation of the City of Cambridge in support of Bill 21, Fixing the 
Long-Term Care Amendment Act (Till death do us part), and passed the following 
resolution: 
 
“Moved by: Councillor Noble 
Seconded by: Councillor Couckuyt 
 
RESOLVED THAT Elgin County Council support the resolution from the Council of the City 
of Cambridge regarding support of Bill 21, Fixing Long-Term Care Amendment Act; and 
 
THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to the Premier of Ontario, Member of Parliament 
Karen Vecchio, and all Ontario Municipalities.  
 
Motion Carried.” 
 
A copy of the motion from the City of Cambridge is attached for your reference. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
 
Jenna Fentie 
Manager of Administrative Services/Deputy Clerk 
jfentie@elgin.ca  
 
cc     Karen Vecchio, Member of Parliament 
         All Ontario Municipalities 
 

Page 154 of 161

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:jfentie@elgin.ca


 

 

 The Corporation of the City of Cambridge 
Corporate Services Department 

Clerk’s Division 
The City of Cambridge 

Tel: (519) 740-4680 ext. 4585 
mantond@cambridge.ca 

 
October 27, 2023  
 
 
Re: Support for Bill 21, Fixing Long-Term Care Amendment Act  
 
 
At its Council Meeting of October 24, 2023, the Council of the Corporation of the City of 
Cambridge passed the following Motion: 
 

WHEREAS the care, support, and happiness of older adults in Cambridge is a priority 
for City Council; 
 
WHEREAS older adults deserve dignity in care and should have the right to live with 
their partner as they age; 
 
WHEREAS within the Province of Ontario couples do not have the right to be 
accommodated together when entering long term care facilities; 
 
WHEREAS the separation of spouses upon entering long term care facilities is a 
common occurrence across Ontario; 
 
WHERAS Bill 21, Fixing Long-Term Care Amendment Act (Till death do us part) was 
first introduced in the provincial legislature in 2019 and was reintroduced in 2022; 
 
WHEREAS Bill 21 amends the Residents’ Bill of Rights set out in section 3 of Fixing 
Long-Term Care Act, 2021 by adding the right of residents not to be separated from 
their spouse upon admission and to have accommodation made available for both 
spouses so they may continue to live together; 
 
WHEREAS Bill 21 passed its second reading in the provincial legislature on 
November 15, 2022 and was subsequently ordered referred to the Standing 
Committee on Social Policy and has since yet to be called to the Standing Committee; 
 
WHEREAS the Conservative provincial Government may bring forward a new Bill that 
in principle supports the intent of Bill 21 to fix the Long-Term Care Amendment Act; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Cambridge supports any future Bill to fix the 
Long-Term Care Amendment Act; 
 

Page 155 of 161



 

 

AND THAT the City of Cambridge requests the provincial legislature enact any current 
and future proposed Bills to fix the Long-Term Care Amendment Act. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the City Clerk be directed to send a copy of this motion to the 
Region of Waterloo, Province of Ontario, The Honourable Premier of Ontario, The 
Right Honourable Provincial Members of Parliament, and all Ontario Municipalities.  
 
 

Should you have any questions related to the approved resolution, please contact 
me.  
 
Yours Truly, 
 

 
 
Danielle Manton 
City Clerk 
 
Cc: (via email) 
Hon. Premier Ford 
Hon. Provincial Members of Parliament  
Region of Waterloo 
Province of Ontario 
All Ontario Municipalities  

Page 156 of 161



COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

Sl UNi t\ll 
Resolution No.: ~C\'\ -~~ 

Date: Nov 14. 2023 

WHEREAS excessive noise resulting from the operation of moving vehicles falls under the jurisdiction of the 
Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. H.8. ("Highway Traffic Act") which is enforced by provincially appointed 
officers; 

AND WHEREAS municipalities, including the Municipality of Shuniah, have received complaints from residents 
regarding noises associated with the use of engine retarder brakes on heavy vehicles; 

AND WHEREAS the Ministry of Transportation recommends the use of engine braking in certain circumstances, 
such as the downgrade located on Spruce River Road to avoid overheating brakes, and as a form of backup 
brake if brakes fail; 

AND WHEREAS a higher engine noise is typically emitted for a short period of time (e.g., ten (10) to thirty (30) 
seconds), depending on the vehicle's speed and vehicles may make a loud "chattering" or "jackhammer" exhaust 
noise when this braking system is engaged; 

AND WHEREAS this noise can be amplified if the vehicle has no muffler or an improper muffling system; 

AND WHEREAS noise emissions from commercial vehicles form part of the Ministry of Transportation's inspection 
process; 

AND WHEREAS installation of "courtesy" signs that request the drivers to limit the use of loud compression style 
brakes are difficult to enforce and there is evidence of these types of signs not being beneficial; 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Province of Ontario be requested to enhance enforcement for deficient muffler 
systems to address concerns around excessive and unnecessary noise from engine brakes. 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT a copy of this motion be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, Minister of 
Transportation Prabmeet Sarkaria, MPP Kevin Holland, MP Marcus Pawlowski, MPP Lise Vaugeois, and MP Patty 
Ha~. 

l!J Carried D Defeated D Amended D Deferred 

Signature 
Municipality of Shuniah, 420 Leslie Avenue , Thunder Bay, Ontario, P7A 1X8 

Page 10 of 28 
Page 157 of 161



Page 158 of 161



Page 159 of 161



Page 160 of 161



 

Corporation of the Municipality of Calvin 
Council Resolution  

 

Date: November 14, 2023 

Resolution Number:  2023-295 

Moved By: Councillor Manson 

Seconded By: Councillor Latimer   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

“The Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of Calvin is in receipt of the resolution from the Corporation of the 
Municipality of Wawa and supporting letter from the City of Quinte West addressed to the Honorable Doug Ford noting that 
the Ontario College of Physicians and Surgeons has made a decision that will lead more people who suffer from chronic pain to 
turn to opioids to alleviate their pain and: Whereas the College is targeting community pain clinics requiring the use of 
ultrasound technology in the administration of nerve block injections by licenced physicians. This requirement will increase the 
time to it takes to administer the nerve block and, therefore, reduce the number of patients a physician can see in a day and: 
Where as the Ontario Health Insurance Plan is proposing to reduce coverage for several vital healthcare services, including a 
drastic reduction in the number and frequency of nerve block injections a patient can receive and: Whereas these changes have 
been proposed without any consultation with pain management medical professionals or with their patients and;  Whereas this 
cut will force chronic pain clinics to shut down, putting a greater strain on family physicians and emergency rooms and; 
Whereas with the reduction in the number of nerve blocks being administered, many patients, looking for pain relief will to 
overcrowded emergency rooms, opioid prescriptions form doctors or opioid street drugs;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  

The Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of Calvin is requesting that the Government of Ontario maintain OHIP 
coverage for chronic pain treatments and continue to provide much needed care for the people of Ontario. 

AND FURTHERMORE, THAT a copy of the resolution be forwarded to all Municipalities of Ontario, Local MPPs, Premier Doug 
Ford, the Minister of Health, Associate Minister of Mental Health and Addictions and the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario. 

Results:  Carried 

Recorded Vote: 

Member of Council   In Favour  Opposed 
 
Deputy Mayor Moreton  ☒   ☐ 
Councillor Grant   ☒   ☐ 
Councillor Latimer   ☒   ☐ 
Councillor Manson   ☒   ☐   
 
 

Page 161 of 161


	Agenda
	1. APH Board Package November 22 2023.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	1. APH September 27 2023 Minutes.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. RC23261 Support Automated Enforcement System.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. RC23262 Support Water Training.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4. RC23263 Amend Legislation Act. Digital Publication.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5. RC23265 Support Tax Credit Firefighter.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5. Wawa re Support Tax Credit Firefighter.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6. 2023-11-09 Dufferin County Violence Against Women Resolution.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6. Town of Orangeville - Gender Based Violence and Intimate Partner Violence an Epidemic.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6. Resolution 2023-412.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	7. 2023-11-10 Letter - Support for Township of McKellar Re Amendment to the Legislation Act 2006.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	7. 2023-343 Township of McKellar Call for an Amendment to the Legislation Act 2006.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	7. R-178-23 Township of McKellar Call for an Amendment to the Legislation Act 2006.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	8. Resolution 23-455 Letter of Support.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	8. City of Cambridge Resolution October 24 2023 Long Term Care.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	8. Letter to Premier Ford - Bill 21.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	9. Shuniah Resolution - 399-23 (Unnecessary Noise - Engine Brakes).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	10. Motion of Support - School Bus Arm Cameras.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	11. Municipality of Bluewater - Childcare availability in Ontario.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	12. Township of Archipelago - Cigarette Producer Responsibility.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	13. Resolution 2023-295 Chronic Pain Treatment Support.pdf
	Back to Agenda


